UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by the Registrant		\boxtimes					
File	ed by a party other than the Registrant						
Che	Check the appropriate box:						
	Preliminary Proxy Statement						
	Confidential, for Use of the Commission	on Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))					
\times	Definitive Proxy Statement						
	Definitive Additional Materials						
	Soliciting Material Pursuant to Section	n 240.14a-12					
		DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION egistrant as Specified in Its Charter)					
	(Name of Person(s) Filin	ng Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)					
Pay	ment of Filing Fee (Check all boxes that	at apply):					
\times	No fee required.						
	Fee paid previously with preliminary	materials.					



Safe and Green Development Corporation 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201 Miami, Florida 33132

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON SEPTEMBER 29, 2025

September 8, 2025

To the Stockholders of Safe and Green Development Corporation:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2025 Annual Meeting") of Safe and Green Development Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the "Company"). The meeting will be held on September 29, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time at the offices of Blank Rome LLP, 1271 Avenue of the Americas, 16th Floor, New York, New York 10020. The purpose of the 2025 Annual Meeting and the matters to be acted on are stated below in this Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") knows of no other business that will come before the 2025 Annual Meeting.

At the 2025 Annual Meeting, stockholders will vote on the following matters:

- (1) to elect the three (3) nominees for Class II director named in the accompanying proxy statement to the Board, each to serve a three-year term expiring at the 2028 annual meeting of stockholders and until such director's successor is duly elected and qualified (the "<u>Election of Director Proposal</u>" or "<u>Proposal 1</u>")
- (2) to ratify the appointment of M&K CPAS PLLC as our independent registered public accounting firm for the Company's fiscal year ending December 31, 2025 (the "<u>Auditor Ratification Proposal</u>" or "<u>Proposal 2</u>");
- (3) to approve an amendment to the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, (the "Certificate of Incorporation"), in substantially the form attached to the accompanying proxy statement as Annex A, to, at the discretion of the Board, effect a reverse stock split with respect to the Company's issued and outstanding common stock, par value \$0.001 per share ("Common Stock"), at a ratio of 1-for-5 to 1-for-20 (the "Range"), with the ratio within such Range to be determined at the discretion of the Board and included in a public announcement (the "Reverse Stock Split Proposal" or "Proposal 3");
- (4) to approve an amendment to the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, in substantially the form attached to the accompanying proxy statement as <u>Annex B</u>, to, at the discretion of the Board, increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from 100,000,000 to 500,000,000 (the "<u>Authorized Increase Proposal</u>" or "<u>Proposal 4</u>"):
- (5) to approve an amendment to the Company's 2023 Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2023 Plan"), in substantially the form attached to the accompanying proxy statement as <u>Annex C</u>, to increase the number of shares of Common Stock that will be available for awards under the 2023 Plan by 1,200,000 shares to 1,489,859 shares (the "2023 Plan Amendment Proposal") or "Proposal 5");
- (6) to approve the issuance of an aggregate of 9,041,182 shares of Common Stock to the prior members of Resource Group US Holdings LLC ("Resource Group"), including up to 9,000,000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of 1,500,000 shares of the Company's Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

issued to the members of Resource Group at the closing of the acquisition of Resource Group, in order to comply with Listing Rule 5635(d) of Nasdaq ("Rule 5635(d)"), which requires shareholder approval prior to the issuance of securities in a transaction other than a public offering (A) when the issuance (i) constitutes voting power in excess of 20% of the outstanding voting power prior to the issuance or (ii) is or will be in excess of 20% of the outstanding Common Stock prior to the issuance, and (B) is below the Minimum Price (as defined in Rule 5635(d)) (the "Resource Group Proposal" or "Proposal 6"). and

- (7) to approve an adjournment of the 2025 Annual Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote of proxies in the event there are not sufficient votes in favor of the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, the Authorized Increase Proposal, the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal and/or the Resource Group Proposal (the "Adjournment Proposal" or "Proposal 7"); and
- (8) to transact such other business as may properly come before the 2025 Annual Meeting or any adjournments or postponements of the 2025 Annual Meeting.

The matters listed in this notice of meeting are described in detail in the accompanying proxy statement. The Board has fixed the close of business on July 31, 2025 as the record date (the "Record Date") for determining those stockholders who are entitled to notice of and to vote at the 2025 Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the 2025 Annual Meeting. The list of the stockholders of record as of the Record Date will be made available for inspection at the 2025 Annual Meeting for the ten days preceding the meeting at the Company's offices located at 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201, Miami, Florida 33132 during ordinary business hours for any purpose germane to the 2025 Annual Meeting.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE 2025 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON SEPTEMBER 29, 2025.

The proxy materials together with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (the "2024 Annual Report"), which is not a part of our proxy solicitation materials, are being mailed or made available to the stockholders of record on or about September 8, 2025. This Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the proxy statement and our 2024 Annual Report are available at http://www.astproxyportal.com/ast/29297/.

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE 2025 ANNUAL MEETING, PLEASE SUBMIT A PROXY TO HAVE YOUR SHARES VOTED AS PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE BY SUBMITTING YOUR PROXY VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE OR BY SIGNING, DATING AND RETURNING BY MAIL THE PROXY CARD ENCLOSED WITH THE PROXY MATERIALS. IF YOU DO NOT RECEIVE THE PROXY MATERIALS IN PRINTED FORM AND WOULD LIKE TO SUBMIT A PROXY BY MAIL, YOU MAY REQUEST A PRINTED COPY OF THE PROXY MATERIALS (INCLUDING THE PROXY) AND SUCH MATERIALS WILL BE SENT TO YOU BY CONTACTING THE CORPORATE SECRETARY, SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 100 BISCAYNE BLVD., SUITE 1201, MIAMI, FLORIDA 33132, OR BY PHONE AT (904) 496-0027.

On behalf of the Board and the employees of Safe and Green Development Corporation, we thank you for your continued support and look forward to speaking with you at the 2025 Annual Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ David Villarreal

David Villarreal

Chief Executive Officer and Director

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
GENERAL INFORMATION	1
ANNUAL MEETING ADMISSION	2
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE 2025 ANNUAL MEETING	3
PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS PROPOSAL	8
INFORMATION REGARDING OUR CONTINUING DIRECTORS	11
DIRECTOR NOMINATION PROCESS	14
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	16
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	22
PROPOSAL 2 AUDITOR RATIFICATION PROPOSAL	23
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT	25
PROPOSAL 3 THE REVERSE STOCK SPLIT PROPOSAL	26
PROPOSAL 4 AUTHORIZED INCREASE PROPOSAL	37
PROPOSAL 5 APPROVAL OF THE 2023 PLAN AMENDMENT PROPOSAL	40
PROPOSAL 6 APPROVAL OF RESOURCE GROUP PROPOSAL	47
PROPOSAL 7 APPROVAL OF THE ADJOURNMENT PROPOSAL	49
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS WHO ARE NOT DIRECTORS	50
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	50
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	56
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS, PROMOTERS AND CERTAIN CONTROL PERSONS	57
ANNUAL REPORT/FORM 10-K	62
HOUSEHOLDING	62
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR THE 2026 ANNUAL MEETING	63
OTHER MATTERS	63
ANNEX A	A-1
ANNEX B	B-1
ANNEX C	C-1
i	



Safe and Green Development Corporation 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201 Miami, Florida 33132

PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE 2025 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON SEPTEMBER 29, 2025

GENERAL INFORMATION

We are providing these proxy materials to holders of shares of common stock, \$0.001 par value per share (the "Common Stock"), of Safe and Green Development Corporation, a Delaware corporation (referred to herein as "SG DevCo," the "Company," "we," or "us"), in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of SG DevCo (the "Board" or "Board of Directors") of proxies to be voted at our 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2025 Annual Meeting") to be held on September 29, 2025, beginning at 10:00 a.m., Eastern Time, at the offices of Blank Rome, LLP, 1271 Avenue of the Americas, 16th Floor, New York, New York 10020 and at any adjournment or postponement of our 2025 Annual Meeting. The purpose of the 2025 Annual Meeting and the matters to be acted on are stated in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Board of Directors knows of no other business that will come before the 2025 Annual Meeting. The proxy materials together with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 (the "2024 Annual Report"), which is not a part of our proxy solicitation materials, are being mailed or made available to the stockholders of record on or about September 8, 2025.

The Board of Directors recommends that stockholders vote: (1) "FOR" each of the three (3) nominees for Class II director named in the proxy statement for election to the Board of Directors ("Proposal 1" or the "Election of Directors Proposal"); (2) "FOR" the ratification of the appointment of M&K CPAS PLLC as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025 ("Proposal 2" or the "Auditor Ratification Proposal"); (3) "FOR" the approval of an amendment (the "Reverse Stock Split Amendment") to the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the "Certificate of Incorporation"), in substantially the form attached to the proxy statement as Annex A, to, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, effect a reverse stock split (the "Reverse Stock Split") with respect to the Company's Common Stock, at a ratio of 1-for-5 to 1-for-20 (the "Range"), with the ratio within such Range (the "Reverse Stock Split Ratio") to be determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors and included in a public announcement, subject to the authority of the Board of Directors to abandon such amendment ("Proposal 3" or the "Reverse Stock Split Proposal"); (4) "FOR" the approval of an amendment to the Company's Certificate of Incorporation (the "Authorized Increase Amendment"), in substantially the form attached to the proxy statement as Annex B, to, at the discretion of the Board, increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from 100,000,000 to 500,000,000 ("Proposal 4" or the "Authorized Increase Proposal"); (5) "FOR" the approval an amendment to our 2023 Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2023 Plan"), in substantially the form attached to the proxy statement as Annex C, to increase the number of shares of Common Stock that will be available for awards under the 2023 Plan by 1,200,000 shares to 1,489,859 shares ("Proposal 5" or the "2023 Plan Amendment Proposal"); (6) "FOR" the approval, for purposes of complying with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635 (d), of the issuance of an aggregate of 9,041,182 shares of Common Stock to the prior members of Resource Group US Holdings LLC ("Resource Group"), including up to 9,000,000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of 1,500,000 shares of the Company's Series A Convertible Preferred Stock issued to the members of Resource Group at the closing pursuant to the Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated February 25, 2025, as amended June 2, 2025 (the "Resource MIPA"), by and among the Company("Proposal 6" or the "Resource Group Proposal; and (7) "FOR" the approval of an adjournment of the 2025 Annual Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to permit

further solicitation and vote of proxies in the event there are not sufficient votes in favor of the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, Authorized Increase Proposal, the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal and/or the Resource Group Proposal ("<u>Proposal 7</u>" or the "<u>Adjournment Proposal</u>").

ANNUAL MEETING ADMISSION

All stockholders as of the record date are welcome to attend the 2025 Annual Meeting. If you attend, please note that you will be asked to present government-issued identification (such as a driver's license or passport) and evidence of your share ownership of our Common Stock on the record date. This can be your proxy card if you are a stockholder of record. If your shares are held beneficially in the name of a bank, broker or other holder of record and you plan to attend the 2025 Annual Meeting, you will also be required to present proof of your ownership of our Common Stock on the record date, such as a bank or brokerage account statement or a letter from your broker or bank reflecting your ownership of our Common Stock as of July 31, 2025 (the "Record Date"), to be admitted to the 2025 Annual Meeting.

No cameras, recording equipment or electronic devices will be permitted in the 2025 Annual Meeting.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE 2025 ANNUAL MEETING

We are providing you with these proxy materials because the Board of Directors, is soliciting your proxy to vote at the 2025 Annual Meeting to be held on September 29, 2025, beginning at 10:00 a.m., Eastern Time, at the offices of Blank Rome, LLP, 1271 Avenue of the Americas, 16th Floor, New York, New York 10020 and at any postponement or adjournment thereof. The purpose of the 2025 Annual Meeting and the matters to be acted on are stated in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Board of Directors knows of no other business that will come before the 2025 Annual Meeting.

Q: What information is contained in the proxy statement?

A: The information included in this proxy statement relates to the proposals to be considered and voted on at the 2025 Annual Meeting, the voting process, the compensation of our directors and executive officers, and other required information.

Q: What items of business will be considered and voted on at the 2025 Annual Meeting?

- A: The purpose of the 2025 Annual Meeting and matters to be acted upon are as follows:
 - (1) the election of the three (3) nominees named in this proxy statement for election to the Board as Class II directors (Proposal 1);
 - the ratification of M&K CPAS PLLC as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025 (Proposal 2);
 - (3) the approval of the Reverse Stock Split Amendment, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, to effect a Reverse Stock Split with respect to the Company's Common Stock, at a ratio of 1-for-5 to 1-for-20, with the Reverse Stock Split Ratio to be determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors and included in a public announcement, subject to the authority of the Board of Directors to abandon such amendment (Proposal 3);
 - (4) the approval of the Authorized Increase Amendment, to, at the discretion of the Board, increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock of the Company from 100,000,000 to 500,000,000 (Proposal 4);
 - (5) the approval of an amendment to the 2023 Plan to increase the number of shares of Common Stock that will be available for awards under the 2023 Plan by 1,200,000 shares to 1,489,859 shares (Proposal 5);
 - (6) the approval of the Resource Group Proposal (Proposal 6); and
 - (7) the approval of an adjournment of the 2025 Annual Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote of proxies in the event there are not sufficient votes in favor of the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, Authorized Increase Proposal, the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal, and/or the Resource Group Proposal.

Q: How does the Board of Directors recommend that I vote?

A: The Board of Directors recommends that you vote (1) "FOR" each of the three (3) nominees named in this proxy statement for election to the Board as Class II directors; (2) "FOR" the Auditor Ratification Proposal; (3) "FOR" the Reverse Stock Split Proposal; (4) "FOR" the Authorized Increase Proposal; (5) "FOR" the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal; (6) "FOR" the Resource Group Proposal; and (7) "FOR" the Adjournment Proposal. If you are a stockholder of record and you return a properly executed proxy card or vote by proxy over the Internet but do not mark the boxes showing how you wish to vote, your shares will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of the Board, as set forth above.

Q: Who is entitled to vote at the 2025 Annual Meeting?

A: Only holders of record of our Common Stock as of the close of business on July 31, 2025 (the "Record Date") are entitled to notice of and to vote at the 2025 Annual Meeting and at any adjournments or postponements thereof. As of the Record Date, there were 3,264,625 shares of Common Stock outstanding and entitled to vote. Holders are entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock outstanding as of the Record Date.

Q. What is the difference between holding shares as a stockholder of record and as a beneficial owner?

A. Most of our stockholders hold their shares through a broker or other nominee rather than directly in their own name. As summarized below, there are some distinctions between shares held of record and those owned beneficially.

Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If on July 31, 2025 your shares were registered directly in your name with the Company's transfer agent, Equiniti Trust Company, LLC, then you are a stockholder of record and the proxy statement is sent directly to you by the Company. As the stockholder of record, you have the right to grant a proxy to someone to vote your shares or to vote in person at the 2025 Annual Meeting.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of a Broker or Bank

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee, you are considered the "beneficial owner" of shares held in street name (also called a "street name" holder), and the proxy statement is forwarded to you by your broker, bank or other nominee. As a beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker, bank or other nominee on how to vote the shares held in your account. However, since you are not a stockholder of record, you may not vote these shares in person at the 2025 Annual Meeting unless you bring with you a legal proxy from the stockholder of record. A legal proxy may be obtained from your broker, bank or nominee. If you do not wish to vote in person or you will not be attending the 2025 Annual Meeting you may instruct your broker, bank or nominee to vote your shares pursuant to voting instructions you will receive from your broker, bank or nominee describing the available processes for voting your stock.

Q: What happens if I do not vote?

A: Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If you are a stockholder of record and do not vote in person or by proxy by completing your proxy card or submitting your proxy through the internet or by telephone, your shares will not be voted.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of a Broker or Bank

If you are a beneficial owner and do not instruct your broker, bank, or other nominee how to vote your shares, the question of whether your broker or nominee will still be able to vote your shares depends on whether the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") deems the particular proposal to be a "routine" matter. Brokers and nominees can use their discretion to vote "uninstructed" shares with respect to matters that are considered to be "routine," but not with respect to "non-routine" matters. If the broker or nominee that holds your shares does not receive instructions from you on how to vote your shares on a non-routine matter, the organization that holds your shares will not be able to vote your shares on such matter, often referred to as a broker non-vote.

Under the rules and interpretations of the NYSE, "non-routine" matters are matters that may substantially affect the rights or privileges of stockholders, such as mergers, stockholder proposals, elections of directors (even if not contested), executive compensation (including any advisory stockholder votes on executive compensation and on the frequency of stockholder votes on executive compensation), and certain corporate governance proposals, even if management-supported. We believe that Proposals 1, 5, and 6 are non-routine matters and Proposals 2, 3, 4 and 7 will be treated by the NYSE as routine matters. Accordingly, your broker may register your shares as being present at the 2025 Annual Meeting for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum, but not vote your shares on Proposals 1, 5 and 6 without your instructions (referred to as broker non-votes), but may vote your shares on Proposals 2, 3, 4 and 7 even in the absence of your instruction. This belief is based on preliminary guidance from the NYSE and may be incorrect or change before the 2025 Annual Meeting.

Q: Can I change my vote or revoke my proxy?

A: Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

You may change your vote or revoke your proxy at any time before the final vote at the 2025 Annual Meeting. To change how your shares are voted or to revoke your proxy, if you are the record holder, you may (1) notify our Corporate Secretary in writing at Safe and Green Development Corporation, 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201,

Miami, Florida 33132; (2) submit a later-dated proxy by mail, via internet or by telephone, subject to the voting deadlines that are described on the proxy card; or (3) deliver to our Corporate Secretary another duly executed proxy bearing a later date. You may also revoke your proxy by attending the 2025 Annual Meeting and voting at the meeting. Attendance at the 2025 Annual Meeting alone will not revoke your proxy. The last vote received chronologically will supersede any prior votes.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of a Broker or Bank

For shares you hold beneficially, you may change your vote by following the instructions provided by your broker, bank or other nominee.

What is a quorum and why is it necessary?

A: Conducting business at the meeting requires a quorum. The holders of thirty-four percent (34%) of the outstanding shares of stock of the Company entitled to vote at the 2025 Annual Meeting, present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Abstentions and proxies marked "withhold" for the election of directors are treated as present for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists. Broker non-votes (which result when your shares are held in "street name", and you do not tell the nominee how to vote your shares and the nominee does not have discretion to vote such shares or declines to exercise discretion) are treated as present for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the meeting. If there is no quorum, the chairperson of the 2025 Annual Meeting or the holders of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting may adjourn the 2025 Annual Meeting to another time and place.

What is the voting requirement to approve each of the proposals?

A:

Proposal	Vote Required	Effect of Abstentions (or the Withholding of Authority)	Effect of Broker Non-Votes
Proposal 1: Election of Directors	Plurality – the three (3) Class II director nominees who receive the most "FOR" votes will be elected to serve on the Board	No effect	No effect
Proposal 2: Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter is required.	Counts as a vote "AGAINST" this proposal.	None expected
Proposal 3: Reverse Stock Split Proposal	The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by the holders of all shares of stock present or represented and voting on this proposal is required	No effect	None expected
Proposal 4: Authorized Increase Proposal	The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by the holders of all shares of stock present or represented and voting on this proposal is required	No effect.	None expected
Proposal 5 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal	The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter is required	Counts as a vote "AGAINST" this proposal.	No effect
	5		

Proposal	Vote Required	Abstentions (or the Withholding of Authority)	Effect of Broker Non-Votes	
Proposal 6 Resource Group Proposal	The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter is required	Counts as a vote "AGAINST" this proposal.	No effect	
Proposal 7: Adjournment Proposal	The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter is required.	Counts as a vote "AGAINST" this proposal.	None expected	

Q: What shares can I vote?

A: You may vote or cause to be voted all shares owned by you as of the close of business on July 31, 2025, the Record Date. These shares include: (1) shares held directly in your name as a stockholder of record; and (2) shares held for you, as the beneficial owner, through a broker or other nominee, such as a bank.

Q: How may I vote?

A: Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If you are a stockholder of record, you can vote your shares in one of two ways: either by proxy or in person at the 2025 Annual Meeting. If you choose to have your shares voted by proxy, you may submit a proxy over the internet, via telephone or by completing and returning by mail the proxy card you have received. Whichever method you use, each valid proxy received in time will be voted at the 2025 Annual Meeting in accordance with your instructions. The procedures for voting are fairly simple:

- Submit a Proxy by Mail. If you choose to submit a proxy by mail, simply mark, date and sign your
 proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope provided.
- Submit a Proxy by Internet. If you choose to submit a proxy by internet, go to www.voteproxy.com to complete an electronic proxy card. Have your proxy card in hand when you access the website and follow the instructions. Your internet vote must be received by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on September 21, 2025 to be counted.
- Submit a Proxy by Telephone. If you choose to submit a proxy by telephone, dial 1-800-PROXIES
 (1-800-776-9437) in the United States or 1-201-299-4446 from foreign countries from any touchtone telephone. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and follow the instructions. Your
 telephonic vote must be received by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on September 21, 2025 to be counted.
- Vote at the Annual Meeting. Submitting a proxy by mail, internet or telephonically will not limit
 your right to vote at the 2025 Annual Meeting if you decide to attend the 2025 Annual Meeting and
 vote in person.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of Broker or Bank

If you are a beneficial owner of shares registered in the name of your broker, bank, or other nominee, you should have received a voting instruction form with these proxy materials from that organization rather than from the Company. Follow the instructions from your broker, bank or other nominee included with these proxy materials. Internet and telephone voting may be available to beneficial owners. Please refer to the voting instruction form provided by your broker, bank or other nominee.

As a beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker, bank or nominee on how to vote the shares held in your account. However, since you are not a stockholder of record, you may not vote these shares in person at the 2025 Annual Meeting unless you bring with you a legal proxy from the stockholder of record. A legal proxy may be obtained from your broker, bank or other nominee.

Q: What if I return a proxy card or otherwise submit a proxy but do not make specific choices?

A: If you are a record holder and return a signed and dated proxy card or otherwise submit a proxy without marking voting selections, your shares will be voted, as applicable, (1) "FOR" each of the three (3) nominees for Class II director named herein for election to the Board of Directors; (2) "FOR" the Auditor Ratification Proposal; (3) "FOR" the Reverse Stock Split Proposal; (4) "FOR" the Authorized Increase Proposal; (5) "FOR" the 2023 Plan Increase Proposal; (6) "FOR" the Resource Group Proposal; and (7) "FOR" the Adjournment Proposal.

Q: What should I do if I receive more than one proxy card?

A: You may receive more than one proxy card. For example, if you are a stockholder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. These should each be voted and/or returned separately in order to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

Q: Where can I find the voting results of the 2025 Annual Meeting?

A: We intend to announce preliminary voting results at the 2025 Annual Meeting and publish final results in a Current Report on Form 8-K, which will be filed within four (4) business days of the 2025 Annual Meeting. If final voting results are not available to us in time to file a Current Report on Form 8-K within four (4) business days after the 2025 Annual Meeting, we intend to file a Current Report on Form 8-K to publish preliminary results and, within four (4) business days after the final results are known to us, file an additional Current Report on Form 8-K to publish the final results.

Q: What happens if additional matters are presented at the 2025 Annual Meeting?

A: Other than the seven (7) items of business described in this proxy statement, we are not aware of any other business to be acted upon at the 2025 Annual Meeting. If you grant a proxy, the persons named as proxy holders, David Villarreal, our Chief Executive Officer, and Nicolai Brune, our Chief Financial Officer, or either of them, will have the discretion to vote your shares on any additional matters properly presented for a vote at the 2025 Annual Meeting and intend to vote the proxies in accordance with their best judgment.

Q: Who will count the votes?

A: One or more inspectors of election will tabulate the votes.

Q: Is my vote confidential?

A: Proxy instructions, ballots, and voting tabulations that identify individual stockholders are handled in a manner that protects your voting privacy. Your vote will not be disclosed, either within SG DevCo or to anyone else, except: (1) as necessary to meet applicable legal requirements; (2) to allow for the tabulation of votes and certification of the vote; or (3) to facilitate a successful proxy solicitation.

Q: Who will bear the cost of soliciting votes for the 2025 Annual Meeting?

A: We will pay all expenses incurred in connection with the solicitation of proxies. In addition to solicitation by mail, our officers, directors and regular employees, who will receive no additional compensation for their services, may solicit proxies in person or by telephone, facsimile, email or the Internet. We have requested that brokers, banks and other nominees who hold stock in their names furnish this proxy material to their customers; we will reimburse these brokers, banks and nominees for their out-of-pocket and reasonable expense. Although it is not anticipated, we reserve the right to retain a professional firm of proxy solicitors to assist in the solicitation of proxies. We estimate that we would be required to pay such firm fees ranging from \$10,000 to \$20,000 plus out-of-pocket expenses.

Q: Who can help answer my questions?

A: If you have any questions about the 2025 Annual Meeting or how to vote, submit a proxy or revoke your proxy, or you need additional copies of this proxy statement or voting materials, you should contact the Corporate Secretary, Safe and Green Development Corporation, 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201, Miami, Florida 33132, or by phone (904) 496-0027.

PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS PROPOSAL

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides that the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall be fixed from time to time by such Board of Directors. Our Board of Directors currently consists of eight directors and pursuant to the terms of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, our Board of Directors is divided into three classes, designated Class I, Class II and Class III. Each class consists, as nearly as possible, of one third of the total number of directors constituting the entire Board of Directors. Each class serves for three years, with the terms of office of the respective classes expiring in successive years. The eight members of our Board of Directors are: David Villarreal, Bjarne Borg, James D. Burnham, Anthony M. Cialone, Peter G. DeMaria, John Scott Magrane, Jr., Christopher Melton, and Jeffrey Tweedy. Our Board of Directors is currently divided into three classes as follows:

- Class I directors, Bjarne Borg, Christopher Melton, and Jeffrey Tweedy
- Class II directors, Anthony M. Cialone, John Scott Magrane, Jr. and David Villarreal
- · Class III directors, James D. Burnham and Peter G. DeMaria

Our Board has nominated Anthony M. Cialone, John Scott Magrane, Jr. and David Villareal to be elected at the 2025 Annual Meeting to serve as Class II directors. Each of the nominees is currently a Class II member of our board of directors. Each nomination for director was based upon the recommendation of our Nominating and Governance Committee. Each of the nominees have consented to being named in this proxy statement and to serve as a director if elected. If elected at the 2025 Annual Meeting, each of these nominees would serve until the 2028 annual meeting of stockholders and until his successor has been duly elected, or if sooner, until the director's death, resignation or removal. In the event any of the nominees shall be unable or unwilling to serve as a director, the persons named in the proxy intend to vote "FOR" the election of any person as may be nominated by the Board in substitution. The Company has no reason to believe that any of the nominees will be unable to serve as a director if elected.

Shares represented by proxies will be voted "FOR" the election of the three (3) nominees (Messrs. Cialone, Magrane and Villareal), unless the proxy is marked to withhold authority to so vote. Proxies may not be voted for more than three directors. Stockholders may not cumulate votes for the election of directors.

Nominees for Election at the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Set forth below are our three (3) Class II director nominees, their respective ages and positions as of the date of this proxy statement, the year in which each first became a director and the year in which their terms as director expire assuming they are re-elected at the 2025 Annual Meeting:

Director Nominees Class II	Age	Position(s) Held	Director Since	Term Expires if re-elected
Anthony M. Cialone	56	Director	2025	2028
John Scott Magrane, Jr.	78	Director	2023	2028
David Villarreal	73	Director	2023	2028

Anthony M. Cialone, was appointed as a director of SG DevCo effective June 17, 2025, following our acquisition of Resource Group. Mr. Cialone currently serves as President and Chief Operating Officer of Resource Group US, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Resource Group, a position he has held since January 2019. He brings over 30 years of executive leadership experience, with a strong track record in corporate operations, risk management, and strategic planning. At Resource Group, he has led key initiatives in biomass-to-industrial energy conversion and composting, developed investor-focused funding strategies and financial models, optimized transportation logistics and closed-loop supply chains, and advanced the company's growth through targeted acquisitions. Since May 2020, Mr. Cialone has also served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Microtec Development & Holdings LLC, where he directs financial planning, capital structuring, and the commercialization of Microtec's proprietary waste-to-value technologies. In addition, since March 2022, Mr. Cialone has served as President and Chief Operating Officer of AggrePlex, LLC, where he leads corporate strategy, operations, and market development for the company's

production of environmentally sustainable pozzolans used as supplementary cementitious materials. Mr. Cialone holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics and Finance and a Master of Business Administration in Corporate Finance, both from Fordham University. In addition, he has completed advanced coursework and executive education programs at Harvard Business School Online, MIT Professional Education, New York University, and the Stanford Graduate School of Business, earning certificates in Business Strategy, Entrepreneurship & Innovation, Finance & Accounting, Leadership & Management, Life Cycle Assessment, Sustainable Infrastructure Systems, and Chief Sustainability Officer Training, among others. He also holds multiple professional certifications (inactive), including Certified Internal Auditor (CIA), Certified Management Accountant (CMA), Certified Financial Manager (CFM), Certified Treasury Professional (CTP), Accredited Valuation Analyst (AVA), and is Certified in Mergers & Acquisitions (CM&AA). Mr. Cialone previously held securities licenses, including Series 6, 27, and 63.

We selected Mr. Cialone to serve on our Board of Directors in accordance with the Resource MIPA under which we agreed to reconstitute the Board as soon as possible after the closing of our acquisition of Resource Group to include the appointment of three directors designated by a majority-in-interest of the members of Resource Group. Mr. Cialone was designated by a majority-in-interest of the members of Resource Group to be appointed to the Board. He brings to our Board significant strategic, business and financial experience related to the business and financial issues facing companies in the advanced engineered soils and compost business, as well as the logistics and transportation business. Through his services as President and Chief Operating Officer of Resource Group US, LLC, he has developed extensive knowledge of Resource Group's business.

John Scott Magrane, Jr. was appointed as a director of SG DevCo effective April 11, 2023. Mr. Magrane is an investment banking professional with over thirty-five years of experience advising power-related enterprises, including utilities, independent power companies, rural electric cooperatives, governments and energy technology companies. Mr. Magrane currently serves as Vice Chairman at Coady Diemar Partners, LLC, a registered broker dealer and boutique investment bank which he founded that provides M&A, strategic and financial advisory, and private capital market services, and from March 2018 to July 2020, served as Chairman and CEO of the firm. From July 2021 until August 2023, Mr. Magrane served on the board of directors of Hydromer (HYDI Pink), global business-to-business (B2B) surface modification and coating solutions provider offering polymer research & development, and manufacturing services capabilities for a wide variety of applications. Prior to Coady Diemar Partners, LLC, from July 1987 to December 2001 Mr. Magrane was employed by Goldman Sachs & Co. where his responsibilities encompassed all manner of corporate finance and strategic advisory activities. While at Goldman, he started the firm's Energy Technology effort. Mr. Magrane began his career and spent 10 years with Blyth, Eastman Dillon & Co. and Paine Webber where he specialized in energy and power project finance. Mr. Magrane earned his undergraduate degree in economics from The College of Wooster in 1970 and his MBA from The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in 1973.

We selected Mr. Magrane to serve on our Board of Directors because he brings extensive knowledge of the investment banking and finance industry. Mr. Magrane's pertinent experience, qualifications, attributes and skills include financial literacy and expertise, managerial experience and the knowledge and experience he has attained through his investment banking and finance activities.

David Villarreal has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of SG DevCo since February 3, 2023. Mr. Villarreal was appointed as a director of SG DevCo effective April 11, 2023 and has served as a director of Safe & Green Holdings Corp. ("SG Holdings") from May 28, 2021 until October 22, 2024. Mr. Villarreal's career spans over 40 years in various management, business and leadership capacities, beginning in 1977 when he served as Deputy Mayor and Senior Deputy Economic Development Advisor, under Mayor Tom Bradley in the City of Los Angeles. From August 2014 until March 2023, Mr. Villarreal served as the Chief Administrative Officer of affinity Partnerships, LLC, a Costco national mortgage services platform provider, with annual closed loan production of \$8+ billion through a network of ten national mortgage lenders. From March 2011 to August 2014, he served as the President — Corporate Business Development, of Prime Source Mortgage, Inc. From September 2008 to September 2012, he served as a Consultant to the International Brotherhood of Teamsters.

We selected Mr. Villarreal to serve on our Board of Directors because he brings extensive knowledge of the mortgage and real estate industry. Mr. Villarreal's pertinent experience, qualifications, attributes and skills include financial literacy and expertise, managerial experience and the knowledge and experience he has attained through his real estate investment activities.

Vote Required

Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes of the shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors. Accordingly, the three (3) nominees receiving the highest number of "FOR" votes will be elected. Abstentions, withheld votes and broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of the election.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR" THE ELECTION OF EACH OF THE THREE CLASS II NOMINEES

INFORMATION REGARDING OUR CONTINUING DIRECTORS

The directors who are serving terms that end following the 2025 Annual Meeting and their ages, positions at our company, the year in which each first became a director and the expiration of their respective terms on our Board of Directors are provided in the table below and in the additional biographical descriptions set forth in the text below the table.

Directors	Age	Position Held	Director Since	Expiration of Term
Class I				
Bjarne Borg	58	Director	2025	2028
Christopher Melton	53	Director	2023	2028
Jeffrey Tweedy	62	Director	2023	2028
Class III				
James D, Burnham	60	Director	2025	2026
Peter G. DeMaria	62	Director	2023	2026

Class I Directors

Bjarne Borg, was appointed as a director of SG DevCo effective June 17, 2025, following our acquisition of Resource Group. Mr. Borg serves as the Executive Chairman of Index Investment Group, which he co-founded in 1998. Index Investment Group, through a collection of related companies, develops business projects in real estate and renewable energy and provides private equity to invest in complementary businesses. With over 35 years of experience in managing start-ups and multinational corporations, Mr. Borg focuses on real estate, renewable energy, and disruptive equity investments. Mr. Borg's expertise extends to public markets, having listed bonds on NASDAQ, and serving on advisory boards for banking institutions. He has served on the South Florida advisory boards for SunTrust Bank and Truist Bank (NYSE: TFC), and is currently serving as a director of JFB Construction Holdings (NASDAQ: JFB) and on the advisory/ambassador boards for ConnectOne Bancorp, Inc. (NASDAQ: CNOB) and Seacoast Banking Corporation of Florida (NASDAQ: SBCF). Mr. Borg began his career in IT consulting before transitioning to accounting and eventually focused on investments and developments across Sweden, the USA, and Canada.

We selected Mr. Borg to serve on our Board of Directors in accordance with the Resource MIPA under which we agreed to reconstitute the Board as soon as possible after the closing of our acquisition of Resource Group to include the appointment of three directors designated by a majority-in-interest of the members of Resource Group. Mr. Borg was designated by a majority-in-interest of the members of Resource Group to be appointed to the Board. He brings to our Board extensive knowledge of the financial markets. Mr. Borg's business background provides him with a broad understanding of the financial markets and the financing opportunities available to us.

Christopher Melton was appointed as a director of SG DevCo effective April 11, 2023 and has served as a director of SG Holdings since November 4, 2011. Mr. Melton is a licensed real estate salesperson in the States of South Carolina and Georgia and until June 2019 was a principal of Callegro Investments, LLC, a specialist land investor investing in the southeastern U.S., which he founded 2012. Since June 2019 he has served as a specialist Land Advisor with SVN International Corp. Mr. Melton also serves on several public and private boards, including JFB Construction Holdings since March 2025, Safety Shot Holdings, Inc. (formerly Jupiter Wellness, Inc.) since August 2019 and SRM Entertainment, Inc. since June 2023. From February 2018 until June 2019, he served as chief investment officer and analyst at TNT Capital Advisors, a capital advisory firm based in Florida. He also served as a sales agent as MSK Commercial Services, a commercial real estate company, from February 2018 to June 2019. From 2000 to 2008, Mr. Melton was a Portfolio Manager for Kingdon Capital Management ("Kingdon") in New York City, where he ran an \$800 million book in media, telecom and Japanese investment. Mr. Melton opened Kingdon's office in Japan, where he set up a Japanese research company. From 1997 to 2000, Mr. Melton served as a Vice President at JPMorgan Investment Management as an equity research analyst, where he helped manage \$500 million in REIT funds under management. Mr. Melton was a Senior Real Estate Equity Analyst at RREEF Funds in Chicago from 1995 to 1997. RREEF Funds is the real estate investment management business of Deutsche Bank's Asset Management

Mr. Melton earned a Bachelor of Arts in Political Economy of Industrial Societies from the University of California, Berkeley in 1995. Mr. Melton earned Certification from University of California, Los Angeles's Anderson Director Education Program in 2014. Mr. Melton earned a certificate in cybersecurity for managers from M.I.T. in 2021 and certificate in AI strategy from Cornell in 2023.

We selected Mr. Melton to serve on our Board of Directors because he brings extensive knowledge of the finance and the real estate industry. Mr. Melton's pertinent experience, qualifications, attributes and skills include financial literacy and expertise, managerial experience and the knowledge and experience he has attained through his real estate investment and development activities.

Jeffrey Tweedy was appointed as a director of SG DevCo effective April 11, 2023. Mr. Tweedy is an accomplished, multi-faceted leader with approximately thirty years of executive experience in the fashion and retail industries. Since March 2021 Mr. Tweedy has served as a Brand Advisor to Sean Jean Clothing, an award-winning clothing and lifestyle brand founded by Sean Combs. From November 2007 to March 2021, Mr. Tweedy served as President and CEO of Sean John, having previously served as Executive Vice President from February 1998 to March 2005, building the brand into a market leader, maximizing sales, including across international markets, and conceptualizing and launching a ground-breaking, profitable and highly visible menswear company distinguished by its sophisticated young men's image. Mr. Tweedy has served on the Advisory Board of the Fashion Institute of Technology since January 2020.

We selected Mr. Tweedy to serve on our Board of Directors because he brings extensive knowledge of building brands and maximizing sales. Mr. Tweedy's pertinent experience, qualifications, attributes and skills include financial literacy and expertise, managerial experience and the knowledge and experience he has attained through his executive experience in the fashion and retail industries.

Class III Directors

James D. Burnham, was appointed as a director of SG DevCo effective June 17, 2025, following the Company's acquisition of Resource Group. He has served as the President of JDB Consulting Services, Inc. since October 2003. He has over 30 years of experience in mergers and acquisitions and project development, having commenced his career at Browning-Ferris Industries, Inc. At JDB Consulting Services, Mr. Burnham has principally served as a consultant to various clients interested in acquisition and project development related services (primarily within the solid waste and related industries). Services include business valuation, business brokerage, business planning and modeling, environmental and financial due diligence, loan request packages, operational analysis, transportation analysis, market research, negotiation of legal agreements, project development management on solid waste projects seeking permits, expert witness landfill and transfer station permit valuation and predatory pricing analysis. In addition, since December 2014 Mr. Burnham has served as the CEO and Managing Member of Encell Composites of which he was a co-founder. Encell developed and was granted U.S. and other patents on an alternative railroad crosstie produced from recycled material — principally crumb rubber from scrap tires. Mr. Burnham earned a Bachelor of Science in Civil and Environmental Engineering from the University of Wisconsin.

We selected Mr. Burnham to serve on our Board of Directors in accordance with the Resource MIPA under which we agreed to reconstitute the Board as soon as possible after the closing of our acquisition of Resource Group to include the appointment of three directors designated by a majority-in-interest of the members of Resource Group. Mr. Burnham was designated by a majority-in-interest of the members of Resource Group to be appointed to the Board. He brings to our Board significant strategic, business and financial experience related to the business and financial issues facing companies in the advanced engineered soils and compost business, as well as the logistics and transportation business. Through his services as a consultant to Resource Group US, LLC, he has developed extensive knowledge of Resource Group's business.

Peter G. DeMaria, CFA was appointed as a director of SG DevCo effective April 11, 2023. Mr. DeMaria is a senior banking and finance professional with over thirty-eight years of experience with middle market, mid-corporate, financial sponsor and real estate clients in both domestic and international markets. From December 2018 through May 2022, Mr. DeMaria served as a Senior Managing Director/Group Manager for the middle-market and corporate banking group at PNC Bank where he and his team advised middle market and large corporate clients in the New Jersey and New York City regions. Prior to PNC Bank, Mr. DeMaria served as Managing Director at JPMorgan

(December 1984 through November 2018) where he spent nearly 34 years specializing in cash flow and asset-based lending, capital markets and investment banking products. Mr. DeMaria received his BS in Finance and Accounting from Lehigh University (1984). He received a Masters in Business Administration from the Stern School of Business at New York University (1991) and an Executive Management Certificate at the Fuqua School of Business at Duke University (1998).

We selected Mr. DeMaria to serve on our Board of Directors because he brings extensive knowledge of the banking and finance industry. Mr. DeMaria's pertinent experience, qualifications, attributes and skills include financial literacy and expertise, managerial experience and the knowledge and experience he has attained through his banking and finance activities.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION PROCESS

Director Nominations Process

Each year the Board is expected to nominate a slate of directors for election by stockholders at the annual meeting of stockholders based on the recommendations of the Nominating and Governance Committee. In identifying prospective director candidates, the Nominating and Governance Committee may seek referrals from other members of the Board, management, stockholders and other sources, including third-party recommendations.

Nominating and Governance Committee

The Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for, among other matters, annually presenting to the Board a list of individuals recommended for nomination for election as directors at the annual meeting. The Nominating and Governance Committee identifies and screens candidates for the Board and has the authority as it deems appropriate to retain a professional search firm to identify and evaluate director candidates.

Before recommending a director candidate, the Nominating and Governance Committee will review the candidate's qualifications to determine whether the director candidate meets the qualifications described below. In the case of an incumbent director, the Nominating and Governance Committee will also review the director's service to the Company during the past term, including the number of Board and committee meetings attended, the quality of participation, tenure and whether the candidate continues to meet the qualifications for director as described below. After completing this evaluation, the Nominating and Governance Committee will make a formal recommendation to the full Board as to election or re-election of the candidate.

Candidates may come to the attention of the committee through current and former Board members, management, professional search firms (to whom we would pay a fee), stockholders or other persons. The Nominating and Governance Committee evaluates candidates for the Board on the basis of the needs of the Board and the standards and qualifications set forth below, regardless of the source of the candidate referral.

Director Qualifications & Diversity

To be nominated for director, a director candidate must be a natural person at least twenty-one years of age. Characteristics expected of all directors include integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound business judgment, and the ability and willingness to commit sufficient time to the Board. In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Board considers many factors including diversity, skills, age, education and expertise, dedication, conflicts of interest, independence from the Company's management and the Company and such other relevant factors that may be appropriate in the context of the needs of the Board.

Additional criteria apply to directors being considered to serve on particular committees of the Board. For example, members of the Audit Committee must meet additional standards of independence and have the ability to read and understand our financial statements.

The Nominating and Governance Committee and the Board evaluate each individual in the context of the Board as a whole, with the objective of recommending a group that can best perpetuate the success of the Company's business and represent stockholder interests through the exercise of sound judgment. The Nominating and Governance Committee and the Board seek diversity in experience, viewpoint, education, skill, and other individual qualities and attributes to be represented on the Board. At least annually and when Board vacancies arise, the Nominating and Governance Committee and the Board will review the qualifications, personal and professional experience, background, viewpoints, perspectives, knowledge, and abilities of each director and any director candidate and the interplay of such director's and director candidate's qualifications, personal and professional experience, background, viewpoints, perspectives, knowledge, and abilities with the Board as a whole. Nominees will not be discriminated against on the basis of race, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, disability, or any other basis proscribed by law.

Stockholder Recommendations for Director Nominees

Any stockholder wishing to recommend a candidate for director should submit the recommendation in writing to our principal executive offices: Safe and Green Development Corporation, 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201, Miami, Florida 33132, Attn: Corporate Secretary. The recommendation must include the same information that would be required for a candidate to be nominated by a stockholder at a meeting of stockholders as described under "Stockholder Proposals". Candidates who are recommended by stockholders, as opposed to nominated, will receive the same consideration as other proposed candidates.

Director Candidates Nominated by Stockholders

Stockholders who wish to propose a director nominee at an annual meeting must follow the advance notice procedures contained in our Amended and Restated Bylaws, which include notifying the secretary of the Company not earlier than the close of business on the 120th day and not later than the close of business on the 90th day prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting; provided, however, that in the event that the date of the annual meeting is more than 30 days before or after such anniversary date, notice by the stockholder must be so delivered not earlier than the close of business on the 120th day prior to the date of such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the 90th day prior to the date of such annual meeting or the 10th day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made by the Company. The notice must contain all of the information required in our Amended and Restated Bylaws (which, if applicable, includes information required by Rule 14a-19). Based on this year's annual meeting date of September 29, 2025, a notice will be considered timely for the 2026 Annual Meeting of Stockholders if the secretary of our Company receives it not earlier than the close of business on June 1, 2026 and not later than the close of business on July 1, 2026. See "Stockholder Proposals" for additional information.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board Leadership Structure

The Board does not have a policy that requires the separation of the roles of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. The Board annually reviews its leadership structure to assess what best serves the interests of the Company and its stockholders at a given time. The decision whether to combine or separate these positions depends on what our Board deems to be in the long-term interest of stockholders in light of prevailing circumstances. Our Board believes the Company is well-served by this flexible leadership structure and that the combination or separation of these positions should continue to be considered on an ongoing basis.

Until recently, the positions of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman were held by different persons. Our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Villarreal is responsible for our day-to-day operations and for executing our long-term strategies. Paul Galvin served as our Executive Chairman until his resignation on June 17, 2025. As Executive Chairman, Mr. Galvin was responsible for leading the Board in its oversight responsibilities with respect to the Company. We currently do not have a Chairman; and, we plan to appoint a new Chairman by the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2025.

The Company and the Board recognize the importance of the additional, effective oversight that is provided by its independent Board members. The Board has selected Mr. Melton, a director who is independent, to serve as our Lead Director. The responsibilities of the Lead Director include, among others: (i) presiding over executive sessions of the independent directors and at all meetings at which the Chairman is not present; (ii) calling meetings of the independent directors as he or she deems necessary; (iii) serving as a liaison between management and the independent directors; (iv) proposing agendas and schedules for Board meetings in consultation with the Chairman; (v) communicating Board member feedback to the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman; and (vi) performing such other duties as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.

Each independent director has direct access to our Chief Executive Officer and our Lead Director, as well as other members of the management team. The independent directors meet in executive session without management present at least quarterly.

Director Independence

The Board has determined that the following current directors, constituting a majority of the members of the Board, are independent as defined in the applicable listing standards of Nasdaq: Bjarne Borg, Peter DeMaria, John Scott Magrane, Jr., Christopher Melton and Jeffrey Tweedy. Mr. Villarreal is not independent due to his employment as our Chief Executive Officer and Messrs. Anthony M. Cialone and James D. Burnham are not independent due to their relationship with our subsidiary, Resource Group, and the compensation they receive from Resource Group.

Alyssa Richardson and Yaniv Blumenfeld, both directors of the Company until their resignations from the Board on June 17, 2025 and June 23, 2025, respectively, were also determined by the Board to be independent as defined in the applicable listing standards of Nasdaq. Ms. Richardson served as an independent member (as defined under applicable SEC rules and the listing standards of Nasdaq) of the Nominating and Governance Committee until June 17, 2025, Paul M. Galvin served as a non-independent director of the Company until his resignation on June 17, 2025.

Under applicable Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and Nasdaq rules, the existence of certain "related person" transactions in excess of certain thresholds between a director and the Company are required to be disclosed and may preclude a finding by the Board that the director is independent. A director is not considered "independent" unless the Board affirmatively determines that the director has no material relationship with us that, in the opinion of the Board, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. Based on its independence review, the Board determined that no transactions or relationships between the Company and the independent directors or any member of their immediate family (or any entity of which an independent director or an immediate family member is an executive officer, general partner or significant equity holder) were identified which would render the directors named above not independent.

Each director who served as a member of the Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Governance Committees during 2024 was, and each current member of the Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Governance Committees is, an independent director pursuant to all applicable listing standards of Nasdaq. In addition, (i) each director who

served as a member of the Audit Committee during 2024 also met, and each current member of the Audit Committee also meets, the additional independence standards for audit committee members established by the SEC, and (ii) each director who served as a member of the Compensation Committee during 2024 also qualified, and each current member of the Compensation Committee also qualifies, as a "non-employee director" as defined in Rule 16b-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act").

Committees of the Board of Directors

There are currently three standing committees of the Board of Directors — an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a Nominating and Governance Committee. The Board of Directors has adopted written charters for each committee, which are available on our website at www.sgdevco.com.

The tables below set forth the responsibilities and current members of each of the standing Board committees. Each of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee are comprised solely of directors who have been determined by the Board of Directors to be independent in accordance with SEC regulations and Nasdaq listing standards (including the heightened independence standards for members of the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Responsibilities

- Be directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, retention and oversight of the work of the Company's independent auditors
- Pre-approve all audit and permitted non-audit services to be provided by the independent auditors
- Discuss with management and the independent auditors significant financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection with the preparation of the Company's financial statements
- Review with the independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by the applicable auditing standards adopted by the PCAOB and approved by the SEC from time to time
- Review and discuss the Company's annual and quarterly financial statements with management and the independent auditors
- Review and discuss with management the Company's earnings press releases
- Discuss Company policies and practices with respect to risk assessment and risk management
- Establish procedures for (i) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, and (ii) the confidential, anonymous submission by Company employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters
- · Review related party transactions
- Review and discuss the Company's policies regarding information technology security and protection from cyber risks

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are further described in the Audit Committee Charter, which was adopted by the Board and a copy of which is available on the Company's website.

Current Committee Members:

Peter DeMaria, John Scott Magrane, Jr. and Christopher Melton (Chair)

The Board of Directors has determined that Christopher Melton qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert" under applicable SEC rules.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Responsibilities

- Annually determine and approve the CEO's compensation, based upon an evaluation of the CEO's performance in light of approved corporate goals and objectives
- Annually review and approve the compensation of the Company's other executive officers
- Review and approve and, when appropriate, recommend to the Board of Directors for approval, incentive compensation plans and equitybased plans of the Company
- Review and approve and, when appropriate, recommend to the Board
 of Directors for approval any employment agreements and any
 severance arrangements or plans, including any benefits to be provided
 in connection with a change in control, for the CEO and other
 executive officers
- Review, approve and, when appropriate, recommend to the Board of Directors for approval, stock ownership guidelines and monitor compliance therewith
- Review, approve and, when appropriate, recommend to the Board of Directors for approval, the creation or revision of any clawback policy and oversee the application thereof
- Annually review the potential risk to the Company from its compensation policies and practices
- Periodically review the compensation paid to non-employee directors for their service and make recommendations to the Board of Directors for any adjustments

The responsibilities of the Compensation Committee are further described in the Compensation Committee Charter, which was adopted by the Board and a copy of which is available on the Company's website.

Current Committee Members:

Peter DeMaria, John Scott Magrane, Jr. (Chair) and Jeffrey Tweedy

NOMINATING AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Responsibilities

- Periodically make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the size and composition of the Board of Directors
- Develop and recommend to the Board of Directors criteria for the selection of individuals to be considered as candidates for election to the Board of Directors
- Identify and screen individuals qualified to become members of the Board of Directors
- Review and make recommendations to the full Board whether members of the Board of Directors should stand for re-election
- Recommend to the Board of Directors director nominees to fill vacancies
- Recommend to the Board of Directors director nominees for stockholder approval at each annual or any special meeting of stockholders at which one or more directors are to be elected

- Make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding Board of Directors committee memberships
- Develop and recommend to the Board of Directors a set of corporate governance guidelines and oversee the Company's corporate governance practices
- Review the Company's strategies, activities, and policies regarding ESG matters and make recommendations to the Board of Directors
- Oversee an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors and its committees

The responsibilities of the Nominating and Governance Committee are further described in the Nominating and Governance Committee Charter, which was adopted by the Board and a copy of which is available on the Company's website.

Current Committee Members:

Bjarne Borg, Peter DeMaria, Christopher Melton and Jeffrey Tweedy (Chair)

Ad Hoc Committees

From time-to-time we may establish ad hoc committees to address particular matters.

Board's Role in Risk Oversight

Our management is responsible for identifying risks facing our Company, including strategic, financial, operational, and regulatory risks, implementing risk management policies and procedures and managing our day-to-day risk exposure. The Board has overall responsibility for risk oversight, including, as part of regular Board of Directors and committee meetings, general oversight of executives' management of risks relevant to the Company. While the full Board of Directors has overall responsibility for risk oversight, it is supported in this function by its Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee, and each of the committees regularly reports to the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews and discusses with management and the Company's auditors, as appropriate, financial risks. The Compensation Committee reviews the Company's incentive compensation arrangements to determine whether they encourage excessive risk-taking, reviews and discusses at least annually the relationship between risk management policies and practices and compensation, and evaluates compensation policies and practices that could mitigate any such risk.

Members of the Company's senior management team will periodically report to the full Board about their areas of responsibility and a component of these reports is risk within their area of responsibility and the steps management has taken to monitor and control such exposures. Additional review or reporting on risks is conducted as needed or as requested by the Board or committee.

Executive Sessions

Independent directors regularly meet in executive session at Board of Directors meetings without any members of management being present.

Director Service on other Boards

Directors should advise the chairman of the Nominating and Governance Committee before accepting membership on other boards of directors or other significant commitments involving affiliation with other businesses, non-profit entities or governmental units in order to allow the Company to conduct a review for potential conflicts and other issues. Directors are expected to refrain from accepting any such seat if the Board determines such position to be inadvisable and not in the Company's bests interests.

Conduct of Board Meetings

The Chairman sets the agenda for Board meetings with the understanding that the Board is responsible for providing suggestions for agenda items that are aligned with the advisory and monitoring functions of the Board. Agenda items that fall within the scope of responsibilities of a committee of the Board are reviewed with the chair of that committee. Any member of the Board may request that an item be included on the agenda. Board materials related to agenda items are provided to Board members sufficiently in advance of Board meetings to allow the directors to prepare for discussion of the items at the meeting. At the invitation of the Board, members of senior management recommended by the Chairman attend Board meetings or portions thereof for the purpose of participating in discussions.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of the Company's directors, officers, and employees. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics covers areas such as conflicts of interest, insider trading and compliance with laws and regulations. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on our website at www.sgdevco.com. We intend to post any amendments to or waivers from our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics at this location on our website.

Anti-Hedging and Anti-Pledging Policy

Pursuant to our Insider Trading Policy, we prohibit our directors, officers, and employees from purchasing any financial instrument or engaging in any other transaction, such as a prepaid variable forward, equity swap, collar or exchange fund, that is designed to hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of SG DevCo securities. Our Insider Trading Policy also prohibits our directors, officers, and employees from: (i) participating in short sales of SG DevCo securities; (ii) participating in a transaction involving publicly traded options, such as puts, calls or other derivative securities, related to SG DevCo securities; and (iii) holding Company securities in margin accounts or pledging Company securities as collateral for a loan.

Insider Trading Policy

We have adopted an Insider Trading Policy that is designed to promote compliance with federal and state securities laws and regulations, as well as the rules and regulations of Nasdaq. The Insider Trading Policy provides our standards on trading and causing the trading of our securities while in possession of material non-public information. It prohibits trading in certain circumstances and applies to all of our directors, officers and employees as well as independent contractors or consultants. Additionally, our Insider Trading Policy imposes special additional trading restrictions applicable to all of our directors and executive officers and to such persons' family members who live in such persons' households. The Insider Trading Policy also requires us to comply with all insider trading laws, rules and regulations, and any applicable listing standards when engaging in transactions in our own securities.

Board and Committee Meetings

During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the Board of Directors held eight (8) meetings. During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, our Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee met five (5) times, five (5) times and one (1) time, respectively. In addition, the Board and each Board committee took action by written consent during fiscal 2024. During fiscal 2024, each incumbent director, other than Mr. Blumenfeld and Mr. Tweedy, attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (i) the total number of meetings of the directors which were held during the period for which the director was a director, and (ii) the total number of meetings held by all committees of which the director was a member during the period that the director served.

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings

Absent sufficient cause, each director is expected to attend the Company's annual meeting of stockholders, either in person or by remote communication. A director who is unable to attend the Company's annual meeting of stockholders (which it is understood will occur on occasion) is expected to notify the Chairman. Two of our directors attended the 2024 Annual Meeting.

Stockholder Communications with Directors

Stockholders desiring to communicate with the Board or any individual director may directly contact such director or directors by sending a letter addressed to the Board or the individual director c/o Corporate Secretary, Safe and Green Development Corporation, 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201, Miami, Florida 33132. In the letter, the stockholder must identify himself, herself or themselves as a stockholder of the Company. The Corporate Secretary may require reasonable evidence that the communication is being made by or on behalf of a stockholder before the communication is transmitted to the individual director or to the Board.

Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company's directors and executive officers, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the Company's equity securities, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of common stock and other equity securities of the Company. Officers, directors and greater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

To the Company's knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports filed on the SEC's EDGAR system, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, as well as during prior periods which were unreported, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to the Company's officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners were complied with other than as follows: Safe & Green Holdings Corp. filed one late Form 4 on April 3, 2024 reporting one late transaction; David Villarreal and Nicolai Brune each filed one late Form 4 on October 7, 2024 reporting one late transaction.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Non-Employee Director Compensation 2024 Program

Our non-employee director compensation program is designed to provide competitive compensation necessary to attract and retain high quality outside directors and to encourage ownership of Company stock to further align their interests with those of our stockholders.

For 2024, each director was given the option to select one of the following three compensation options quarterly (with payments to be made on or about April 1, 2024, July 1, 2024, October 1, 2024 and January 1, 2025):

OPTION A	OPTION B	OPTION C			
A cash retainer of \$20,000, and	A cash retainer of \$10,000; and	A grant of 40,000 RSUs that will vest after three months of continued service by the director.			

stock units ("RSUs") that will vest after three months of service by the continued director.

• A grant of 20,000 restricted • A grant of 30,000 RSUs that will vest after three months of continued service by the director.

Director Compensation Table for Fiscal 2024

The following table sets forth information regarding all forms of compensation that were both earned by and paid to our Executive Chairman and each of our non-employee directors during the year ended December 31, 2024. Mr. Villarreal, our President and Chief Executive Officer, receives no compensation for his service as a director and is not included in the table below. Messrs. Borg, Burnham and Cialone were not directors during the year ended December 31, 2024, and are not included in the table below. The compensation arrangements for Mr. Villarreal are disclosed in the Summary Compensation Table set forth in the "Executive Compensation" section of this Proxy Statement.

Name	-	Fees Earned or aid in Cash (\$) ⁽¹⁾	Stock Awards ⁽²⁾	Total
John Scott Magrane, Jr.	\$	80,000	\$ 64,535	\$ 144,535
Jeffrey Tweedy	\$	80,000	\$ 56,090	\$ 96,090
Peter DeMaria	\$	80,000	\$ 64,535	\$ 144,535
Paul Galvin ⁽³⁾	\$	80,000	\$ 56,090	\$ 126,090
Alyssa Richardson ⁽³⁾	\$	80,000	\$ 56,090	\$ 96,090
Yaniv Blumenfeld ⁽³⁾	\$	80,000	\$ 39,200	\$ 119,200
Christopher Melton	\$	80,000	\$ 64,535	\$ 114,535

The amounts reported in this column represent the prorated portions paid or accrued in 2024 of either the quarterly cash reatiner or the equivalent value of the quarterly RSU grant, depending upon the selection elected by each

For each of our non-employee directors, the amount represents the grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 for stock awards granted during 2024. We calculated the estimated fair value of the stock awards issued to our non-employee directors using the closing price per share of our common stock on the grant date. See also Note 9 of the audited financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.

None of the directors owned any outstanding unvested options or RSUS as of December 31, 2024.

PROPOSAL 2 AUDITOR RATIFICATION PROPOSAL

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed M&K CPAS PLLC (M&K) as our independent registered accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2025. A representative of M&K is expected to be present either virtually or via teleconference at the 2025 Annual Meeting and available to respond to appropriate questions and will have the opportunity to make a statement if he or she desires to do so.

Ratification of the appointment of M&K by our stockholders is not required by law, our Amended and Restated Bylaws or other governing documents. As a matter of policy, however, the appointment is being submitted to our stockholders for ratification at the 2025 Annual Meeting. If our stockholders fail to ratify the appointment, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether to retain that firm. Even if the appointment is ratified, the Audit Committee, in its discretion, may direct the appointment of different independent auditors at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in our best interest and the best interests of our stockholders.

Change in Certifying Accountant

On December 13, 2023, upon recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board approved the engagement of M&K as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the Company's fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. On December 15, 2023, the Company (i) entered into an engagement letter with M&K and engaged M&K as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm effective immediately and (ii) dismissed Whitley Penn LLP ("Whitley Penn").

Whitley Penn's report on the Company's consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and for the period from February 17, 2021 (Inception) through December 31, 2021 did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor were they qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principles, except that the report (i) included a paragraph stating "The financial statements include expense allocations for certain corporate functions historically provided by Safe & Green Holdings Corp. These allocations may not be reflective of the actual expense that would have been incurred had the Company operated as a separate entity apart from Safe & Green Holdings Corp." and (ii) contained a "going concern" paragraph.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and the period from February 17, 2021 (Inception) through December 31, 2021, and the subsequent interim periods through December 15, 2023, there were: (i) no disagreements within the meaning of Item 304(a)(1)(iv) of Regulation S-K and the related instructions between the Company and Whitley Penn on any matters of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure which, if not resolved to Whitley Penn's satisfaction, would have caused Whiley Penn to make reference thereto in its reports; and (ii) no reportable events within the meaning of Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.

The Company provided Whitley Penn with its disclosures in the Current Report on Form 8-K disclosing the dismissal of Whitley Penn and requested Whitley Penn to furnish a letter addressed to the Securities and Exchange Commission stating whether or not it agreed with such disclosures. A copy of Whitley Penn's letter, dated December 21, 2023, was filed as Exhibit 16.1 to a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 21, 2023.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and the period from February 17, 2021 (Inception) through December 31, 2021, and the subsequent interim periods through December 15, 2023, neither the Company nor anyone on its behalf consulted with M&K regarding: (i) the application of accounting principles to a specific transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Company's financial statements, and neither a written report nor oral advice was provided to the Company that M&K concluded was an important factor considered by the Company in reaching a decision as to any accounting, auditing, or financial reporting issue; (ii) any matter that was the subject of a disagreement within the meaning of Item 304(a)(1)(iv) of Regulation S-K and the related instructions; or (iii) any reportable event within the meaning of Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees

Aggregate fees for professional services rendered by our independent registered public accounting firms to us as of and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are set forth in the tables below:

Services Rendered ^(a)	2024		2023	
Audit fees	\$	96,966	\$ 169,664	
Audit-related fees		_	_	
Tax fees		_	_	
All other fees		_	_	
Totals	\$	96,966	\$ 169,664	

⁽a) The aggregate fees included in Audit Fees are fees billed for the fiscal years. The aggregate fees included in each of the other categories are fees billed in the fiscal years.

Audit fees include fees for professional services rendered for the audit for our annual financial statements and reviews of the financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and fees related to securities registration statements and related comfort letter procedures, as well as services related to various offerings and our Form 10-K.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee has implemented pre-approval procedures consistent with the rules adopted by the SEC. All audit services to be provided to the Company by our independent public accounting firms are pre-approved by the Audit Committee prior to the initiation of such services (except for items exempt from pre-approval requirements under applicable laws and rules). All of the services provided by the independent registered public accounting firms during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

Required Vote

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the 2025 Annual Meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal will be required to approve the ratification of the appointment of the registered public accounting firm. Abstentions will have the effect of a vote "AGAINST" this proposal. We do not expect there to be any broker-non-votes since this is a routine matter for which brokers may vote in their discretion if beneficial owners of our stock do not provide voting instructions.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR" THE RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION OF M&K CPAS PLLC AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR OUR FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT1

The Audit Committee reviews the Company's financial reporting processes on behalf of the Board. Management is responsible for the financial statements and the reporting processes, including the internal control over financial reporting. The Company's independent registered public accounting firm, M&K, is responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of the audited financial statements with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The Audit Committee monitors these processes. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements with management.

As required by the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB"), the Audit Committee has discussed with M&K the matters required to be discussed by the applicable requirements of the PCAOB and the SEC. The Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and letters from M&K required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding the independent accountant's communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence and has discussed with M&K the independence of M&K from the Company and management.

Based upon the review and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board, and the Board approved, the inclusion of the audited financial statements in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 for filing with the SEC.

Submitted by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors:

Christopher Melton (Chairman) John Scott Magrane, Jr. Peter DeMaria

1 The material in this report is not "soliciting material," is not deemed "filed" with the SEC and is not incorporated by reference in any filing of Safe and Green Development Corporation under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

PROPOSAL 3 THE REVERSE STOCK SPLIT PROPOSAL

The Board of Directors has adopted a resolution setting forth a proposed amendment to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, a copy of which is set forth in the certificate of amendment annexed to this proxy statement as Annex A, declared such amendment advisable, and is recommending that our stockholders approve, such proposed amendment. Such amendment will be effected after stockholder approval thereof only in the event the Board of Directors still deems it advisable. Holders of our Common Stock are being asked to approve the proposal that Article IV of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation be amended to effect a reverse stock split of the Common Stock at a ratio in the range of one (1) share of Common Stock for every five (5) shares of Common Stock to one (1) share of Common Stock for every twenty (20) shares of Common Stock. If the Reverse Stock Split is approved by our stockholders and if a certificate of amendment is filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, the Reverse Stock Split Amendment will effect the Reverse Stock Split by reducing the outstanding number of shares of Common Stock. If the Board of Directors does not implement an approved Reverse Stock Split prior to the one-year anniversary of this meeting, this vote will be of no further force and effect and the Board will again seek stockholder approval before implementing any reverse stock split after that time. The Board of Directors may abandon the proposed Reverse Stock Split Amendment at any time prior to its effectiveness, whether before or after stockholder approval thereof.

As of the Record Date, the Company had 3,428,014 issued and 3,264,625 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding. For purposes of illustration, if the Reverse Stock Split is effected at a ratio of 1-for-5, the number of issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock after the Reverse Stock Split would be approximately 685,602 issued and 652,925 shares issued and outstanding. The Board of Directors' decision as to whether and when to effect the Reverse Stock Split will be based on a number of factors, including market conditions, existing and expected trading prices for the Common Stock, and the continued listing requirements of the Nasdaq. See below for a discussion of the factors that the Board considered in determining the Reverse Stock Split Ratio range, some of which included, but was not limited to, the following: the historical trading price and trading volume of the Common Stock; the expected impact of the Reverse Stock Split on the trading market for the Common Stock in the short-term and long-term, and general market, economic conditions, and other related conditions prevailing in our industry. The Reverse Stock Split, if effected, will not change the number of authorized shares of Common Stock or Preferred Stock, or the par value of Common Stock or Preferred Stock; however, effecting the Reverse Stock Split will provide for additional shares of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock. As of the date of this proxy statement, our current authorized number of shares of Common Stock is sufficient to satisfy all of our share issuance obligations and current share plans and we do not have any current plans, arrangements or understandings relating to the issuance of the additional shares of authorized Common Stock that will become available for issuance following the Reverse Stock Split other than as may be issued and sold by us under outstanding convertible and exercisable securities.

If during a period of 30 consecutive business days, the bid price for our Common Stock closes below the minimum \$1.00 per share, we would not be in compliance with the Nasdaq Bid Price Rule. Nasdaq typically provides a period of at least 180 days by which an issuer can gain compliance with the Bid Price Rule once the stock has had a closing price below \$1.00 for 30 consecutive trading days. However, under Rule 5810 (c)(3)(A) (iv) a listed company is not eligible for any cure period to address a deficiency in the minimum bid price requirement. Therefore, if we are not compliant with the Nasdaq Bid Price Rule at any time prior to October 8, 2025 (one year prior to our reverse stock split) we will not be able to obtain the benefit of the 180-day compliance period. In addition, pursuant to the Nasdaq Listing Rules we will not be granted any cure period if we effectuate one or more reverse stock splits within a two-year period with a cumulative ratio of 250 shares or more to one. Accordingly, we will not be able to effect a reverse stock split at a ratio of in excess of one for 12.5 and remain in compliance with the Nasdaq Listing Rules.

Purpose and Background of the Reverse Stock Split

The Board's primary objective in asking for authority to effect a reverse split is to increase the per-share trading price of our Common Stock. If our Board does not implement the Reverse Stock Split prior to the one-year anniversary of the date on which the Reverse Stock Split is approved by our stockholders at the 2025 Annual Meeting, the authority granted in this proposal to implement the Reverse Stock Split will terminate and the Reverse Stock Split will be abandoned.

As background, we received notice on April 16, 2024 from the Nasdaq Listing Qualifications Department (the "Staff") of Nasdaq notifying us of our noncompliance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)(1) (the "Rule") because the stockholders' equity of the Company of \$1,887,777 as of December 31, 2023, as reported in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on April 1, 2024, was below the minimum requirement of \$2,500,000. Pursuant to Nasdaq's Listing Rules, we had 45 calendar days (until May 31, 2024), to submit a plan to evidence compliance with the Rule (a "Compliance Plan"). We submitted a Compliance Plan within the required time. On July 22, 2024, we received a letter from Nasdaq stating that based on the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the period ended March 31, 2024, and our submission to the Staff, dated May 29, 2024, it determined that we were in compliance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)(1). The letter further stated that if we fail to evidence compliance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)(1) upon filing our next periodic report we may be subject to delisting.

On August 26, 2024, we received a letter from Nasdaq stating that the Company was not in compliance with the Rule because the stockholders' equity of the Company of \$2,018,263 as of June 30, 2024, as reported in the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 14, 2024, was below the minimum requirement of \$2,500,000.

On April 25, 2024, we received written notice from Nasdaq notifying us that for the preceding 30 consecutive business days (March 14, 2024 through April 24, 2024), our Common Stock did not maintain a minimum closing bid price of \$1.00 ("Minimum Bid Price Requirement") per share as required by Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(a)(2). In accordance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5810(c)(3)(A), we were provided a 180-calendar day period, or until October 22, 2024, to regain compliance with the minimum bid price requirement. To regain compliance with the Nasdaq Listing Rules, following stockholder approval at our 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on July 2, 2024, we effected a reverse stock split at a ratio of one (1) to twenty (20) on October 8, 2024, at which time our Common Stock began trading on a post-split basis.

On October 22, 2024, we received a notification letter (the "Notification Letter") from Nasdaq, informing us that we have regained compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Requirement set forth in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(a)(2). To regain compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Requirement, the closing bid of our shares of common stock needed to be at least \$1.00 per share for a minimum of ten (10) consecutive business days. The Notification Letter confirmed that we achieved a closing bid price of \$1.00 or greater per common share for ten (10) consecutive business days from October 8, 2024 to October 21, 2024, thereby regaining compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Requirement.

On February 14, 2025, we received a letter from Nasdaq stating that based on our Form 8-K, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 12, 2025, Nasdaq has determined that we now comply with the stockholders' equity requirement as set forth in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)(1).

The Board of Directors believes that the failure of stockholders to approve the Reverse Stock Split Proposal could prevent us from maintaining compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Requirement and could inhibit our ability to conduct capital raising activities, among other things. If Nasdaq delists the Common Stock, then the Common Stock would likely become traded on an over-the-counter market such as those maintained by OTC Markets Group Inc., which do not have the substantial corporate governance or quantitative listing requirements for continued trading that Nasdaq has. In that event, interest in Common Stock may decline and certain institutions may not have the ability to trade in the Common Stock, all of which could have a material adverse effect on the liquidity or trading volume of the Common Stock. If the Common Stock becomes significantly less liquid due to delisting from Nasdaq, our stockholders may not have the ability to liquidate their investments in the Common Stock as and when desired and we believe our ability to maintain analyst coverage, attractive investor interest, and have access to capital may become significantly diminished as a result.

If the stockholders approve the Reverse Stock Split Proposal and the Board determines to implement the Reverse Stock Split, we will file a certificate of amendment to amend the existing provision of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect the Reverse Stock Split. The text of the form of proposed amendment is set forth in the certificate of amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, which is annexed to this proxy statement as Annex A.

The Reverse Stock Split will be effected simultaneously for all issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock and the Reverse Stock Split Ratio will be the same for all issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock. The Reverse Stock Split will affect all of our stockholders uniformly and will not affect any stockholder's percentage ownership interests in our company, except those stockholders who would have otherwise received fractional shares will receive

cash in lieu of such fractional shares determined in the manner set forth below under the heading "Fractional Shares." After the Reverse Stock Split, each share of the Common Stock will have the same voting rights and rights to dividends and distributions and will be identical in all other respects to the Common Stock now authorized. The Reverse Stock Split will not affect us continuing to be subject to the periodic reporting requirements of the Exchange Act. The Reverse Stock Split is not intended to be, and will not have the effect of, a "going private transaction" covered by Rule 13e-3 under the Exchange Act.

The Reverse Stock Split may result in some stockholders owning "odd-lots" of less than 100 shares of the Common Stock. Brokerage commissions and other costs of transactions in odd-lots are generally higher than the costs of transactions in "round-lots" of even multiples of 100 shares. In addition, we will not issue fractional shares in connection with the Reverse Stock Split, and stockholders who would have otherwise been entitled to receive such fractional shares will receive an amount in cash determined in the manner set forth below under the heading "Fractional Shares."

Following the effectiveness of the Reverse Stock Split, if approved by the stockholders and implemented by the Company, current stockholders will hold fewer shares of Common Stock.

If the Board decides to implement the Reverse Stock Split, the Company would communicate to the public, prior to the effective time of the Reverse Stock Split, additional details regarding the Reverse Stock Split (including the final Reverse Stock Split Ratio, as determined by the Board of Directors). By voting in favor of the Reverse Stock Split, you are also expressly authorizing the Board to determine not to proceed with, and to defer or to abandon, the Reverse Stock Split, in the Board of Director's sole discretion. In determining whether to implement the Reverse Stock Split following receipt of stockholder approval of the Reverse Stock Split, and which Reverse Stock Split Ratio to implement, if any, the Board may consider, among other things, various factors, such as:

- · our ability to maintain our listing on the Nasdaq Capital Market;
- the historical trading price and trading volume of the Common Stock;
- the then-prevailing trading price and trading volume of the Common Stock and the expected impact
 of the Reverse Stock Split on the trading market for the Common Stock in the short and long term;
- which Reverse Stock Split Ratio would result in the greatest overall reduction in our administrative costs:
- · the Nasdaq rules regarding reverse stock split frequency and ratio; and
- · prevailing general market and economic conditions.

Reasons for the Reverse Stock Split

To increase the per share price of our Common Stock. As discussed above, the primary objective for effecting the Reverse Stock Split, should our Board choose to effect one, would be to increase the per share price of our Common Stock if necessary in order to remain incompliance with the Nasdaq Minimum Bid Price Require mentor to regain compliance if we should fall out of compliance. Our Board believes that, should the appropriate circumstances arise, effecting the Reverse Stock Split, could, among other things, help us to appeal to a broader range of investors, generate greater investor interest in the Company, and improve the perception of our Common Stock as an investment security. Our Common Stock is listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market and the failure to comply with the \$1.00 minimum bid price requirement may possibly be cured, under certain circumstances, by effecting the Reverse Stock Split.

To potentially improve the liquidity of the Common Stock. A Reverse Stock Split could allow a broader range of institutions to invest in the Common Stock (namely, funds that are prohibited from buying stocks whose price is below certain thresholds), potentially increasing trading volume and liquidity of the Common Stock and potentially decreasing the volatility of the Common Stock if institutions become long-term holders of the Common Stock. A Reverse Stock Split could help increase analyst and broker interest in the Common Stock as their policies can discourage them from following or recommending companies with low stock prices. Because of the trading volatility often associated with low-priced stocks, many brokerage houses and institutional investors have internal policies and practices that either prohibit them from investing in low-priced stocks or their customers. Some of those policies and practices may make the processing of trades in low-priced stocks economically unattractive to brokers. Additionally, because brokers' commissions on low-priced stocks, a low average price per share of Common Stock can result in individual stockholders paying transaction costs representing

a higher percentage of their total share value than would be the case if the share price were higher. Some investors, however, may view a Reverse Stock Split negatively since it reduces the number of shares of Common Stock available in the public market. If the Reverse Stock Split Proposal is approved and the Board believes that effecting the Reverse Stock Split is in our best interest and the best interest of our stockholders, the Board may effect the Reverse Stock Split, regardless of whether our stock is at risk of delisting from Nasdaq Capital Market, for purposes of enhancing the liquidity of the Common Stock and to facilitate capital raising.

To increase the number of additional shares issuable under the Company's charter. A Reverse Stock Split will reduce the nominal number of shares of Common Stock outstanding and the number of shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise or conversion, as applicable, of outstanding warrants or convertible debentures, while leaving the number of shares issuable under our charter unchanged. A Reverse Stock Split will therefor effectively increase the number of shares of the Common Stock that we are able to issue. This effective increase will facilitate future capital fundraising on our part. Some investors may find the Common Stock more attractive if the Reverse Stock Split is effected with additional assurance that we are unlikely to be limited in our ability to access needed capital by the number of shares of our Common Sock authorized for issuance. However, other investors may find the Common Stock a less attractive investment with the knowledge that additional dilution of the Common Stock is possible.

Certain Risks Associated with a Reverse Stock Split

Reducing the number of outstanding shares of the Common Stock through the Reverse Stock Split Proposal is intended, absent other factors, to increase the per share market price of the Common Stock. Other factors, however, such as our financial results, market conditions, the market perception of our business and other risks, including those set forth below and in our SEC filings and reports, may adversely affect the market price of the Common Stock. As a result, there can be no assurance that the Reverse Stock Split, if completed, will result in the intended benefits described above, that the market price of the Common Stock will increase following the Reverse Stock Split or that the market price of the Common Stock will not decrease in the future. In addition, under Nasdaq's new rules, if in the future the market price of the Common Stock falls below the \$1.00 bid price and we will have executed a reverse stock split within the prior year, we will not be eligible for any compliance period and will face an immediate delisting determination. The new Nasdaq rules also provide that if we fail to meet the \$1.00 bid price requirement and execute one or more reverse splits within a two-year period with a cumulative ratio of 250 shares or more to one, we will not be eligible for any compliance period and will face immediate suspension and delisting procedures.

The Reverse Stock Split May Not Result in a Sustained Increase in the Price of the Common Stock. As noted above, the principal purpose of the Reverse Stock Split Proposal is to maintain a higher average per share market closing price of the Common Stock of at least \$1.00 per share in order to regain compliance with Nasdaq's Minimum Bid Price Requirement. However, the effect of the Reverse Stock Split upon the market price of the Common Stock cannot be predicted with any certainty and we cannot assure you that the Reverse Stock Split will accomplish this objective for any meaningful period of time, or at all. Our reverse stock split effected in October 2024 only accomplished this purpose for a few months.

The Reverse Stock Split May Decrease the Liquidity of the Common Stock. The Board believes that the Reverse Stock Split may result in an increase in the market price of the Common Stock, which could lead to increased interest in the Common Stock and possibly promote greater liquidity for our stockholders. However, the Reverse Stock Split will also reduce the total number of outstanding shares of Common Stock, which may lead to reduced trading and a smaller number of market makers for the Common Stock.

The Reverse Stock Split May Result in Some Stockholders Owning "Odd Lots" That May Be More Difficult to Sell or Require Greater Transaction Costs per Share to Sell. If the Reverse Stock Split is implemented, it will increase the number of stockholders who own "odd lots" of less than 100 shares of Common Stock. A purchase or sale of less than 100 shares of Common Stock (an "odd lot" transaction) may result in incrementally higher trading costs through certain brokers, particularly "full service" brokers. Therefore, those stockholders who own less than 100 shares of Common Stock following the Reverse Stock Split may be required to pay higher transaction costs if they sell their Common Stock.

The Reverse Stock Split May Lead to a Decrease in the Overall Market Capitalization of the Company. The Reverse Stock Split may be viewed negatively by the market and, consequently, could lead to a decrease in our overall market capitalization. If the per share market price of the Common Stock does not increase in proportion to the Reverse Stock Split Ratio, then our value, as measured by our market capitalization, will be reduced.

The Reverse Stock Split May Lead to Further Dilution of the Common Stock. Since the Reverse Stock Split Proposal would reduce the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding and the number of shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise or conversion, as applicable, of outstanding warrants or convertible debentures, while leaving the number of shares authorized and issuable under our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation unchanged, the Reverse Stock Split would effectively increase the number of shares of the Common Stock that we would be able to issue and could lead to dilution of the Common Stock in future financings.

Impact of a Reverse Stock Split If Implemented

A Reverse Stock Split would affect all holders of Common Stock uniformly and would not affect any stockholder's percentage ownership interests or proportionate voting power. The other principal effects of the Reverse Stock Split will be that:

- the number of issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock (and treasury shares), if any, will be reduced proportionately based on the final Reverse Stock Split Ratio, as determined by the Board;
- based on the final Reverse Stock Split Ratio, the per share exercise price or conversion price, as
 applicable, of all outstanding warrants and convertible debentures will be increased proportionately
 and the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise or conversion, as applicable,
 of all outstanding warrants and convertible debentures will be reduced proportionately; and
- the number of shares reserved for issuance pursuant to any outstanding equity awards and any
 maximum number of shares with respect to which equity awards may be granted will be reduced
 proportionately based on the final Reverse Stock Split Ratio.

The following table sets forth the approximate number of shares of the Common Stock that would be outstanding immediately after the Reverse Stock Split based on the current authorized number of shares of Common Stock at various exchange ratios, based on 3,428,014 shares of Common Stock actually issued and 3,264,625 issued and outstanding as of July 31, 2025. The table does not account for fractional shares that will be paid in cash.

	Estimated Number of Shares of Common Stock Before Reverse Stock Split	Estimated Number of Shares of Common Stock After Reverse Stock Split on a 1-for-5 basis	Estimated Number of Shares of Common Stock After Reverse Stock Split on a 1-for-20 basis
Authorized Common Stock	100,000,000	100,000,000	100,000,000
Shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding	3,264,625	652,925	163,231
Shares of Common Stock issuable under outstanding RSUs, warrants, convertible debentures or reserved for issuance under existing plans assuming that the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal is approved	4,600,316	920,063	230,016
Shares of Common Stock authorized but unissued (Authorized Common Stock minus issued and outstanding shares, 163,389 Treasury Shares, shares issuable upon outstanding RSUs, warrants, convertible debentures and shares reserved for issuance under existing incentive plans assuming that the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal is approved)	91,971,670	98,263,623	99,443,364
Shares of Common Stock authorized but unissued assuming Proposal 4 is approved and the authorized number of shares of Common Stock is increased to 500 million shares (Authorized Common Stock minus issued and outstanding shares, 163,389 Treasury Shares, shares issuable upon outstanding RSUs, warrants, convertible debentures and shares reserved for issuance under existing incentive plans assuming that the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal is approved)	491,971,670	498,263,623	499,443,364
20			

We are currently authorized to issue a maximum of 100,000,000 shares of our Common Stock. As of the Record Date, there were 3,264,625 shares of our Common Stock issued and outstanding. Although the number of authorized shares of our Common Stock will not change as a result of the Reverse Stock Split (but will change if Proposal 4 is approved), the number of shares of our Common Stock issued and outstanding will be reduced in proportion to the ratio selected by the Board. Thus, the Reverse Stock Split will effectively increase the number of authorized and unissued shares of our Common Stock available for future issuance by the amount of the reduction effected by the Reverse Stock Split.

Following the Reverse Stock Split, the Board will have the authority, subject to applicable securities laws, to issue all authorized and unissued shares without further stockholder approval, upon such terms and conditions as the Board deems appropriate. Although we consider financing opportunities from time to time, we do not currently have any plans, proposals or understandings to issue the additional shares that would be available if the Reverse Stock Split is approved and effected, but some of the additional shares underlie warrants and convertible debentures, which could be exercised or converted after the Reverse Stock Split is effected.

Effects of the Reverse Stock Split

Management does not anticipate that our financial condition, the percentage ownership of Common Stock by management, the number of our stockholders or any aspect of our business will materially change as a result of the Reverse Stock Split. Because the Reverse Stock Split will apply to all issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock and outstanding rights to purchase Common Stock or to convert other securities into Common Stock the proposed Reverse Stock Split will not alter the relative rights and preferences of existing stockholders, except to the extent the Reverse Stock Split will result in fractional shares, as discussed in more detail below.

The Common Stock is currently registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act, and we are subject to the periodic reporting and other requirements of the Exchange Act. The Reverse Stock Split will not affect the registration of the Common Stock under the Exchange Act or the listing of the Common Stock on Nasdaq Capital Market (other than to the extent it facilitates compliance with Nasdaq Capital Market continued listing standards). Following the Reverse Stock Split, the Common Stock will continue to be listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market, although it will be considered a new listing with a new Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures, or CUSIP number.

The rights of the holders of the Common Stock will not be affected by the Reverse Stock Split, other than as a result of the treatment of fractional shares as described below. For example, a holder of 2% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock immediately prior to the effectiveness of the Reverse Stock Split will generally continue to hold 2% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock immediately after effecting the Reverse Stock Split. The number of stockholders of record will not be affected by the Reverse Stock Split (except to the extent any are cashed out as a result of holding fractional shares). If approved and implemented, the Reverse Stock Split may result in some stockholders owning "odd lots" of less than 100 shares of the Common Stock. Odd lot shares may be more difficult to sell, and brokerage commissions and other costs of transactions in odd lots are generally higher than the costs of transactions in "round lots" of even multiples of 100 shares. The Board believes, however, that these potential effects are outweighed by the benefits of the Reverse Stock Split.

Effectiveness of the Reverse Stock Split. The Reverse Stock Split, if approved by our stockholders, would become effective upon the filing and effectiveness (the "Effective Time") of an amendment to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, which would take place at the Board's discretion. The exact timing of the filing of the Reverse Stock Split Amendment, if filed, would be determined by the Board based on its evaluation as to when such action would be the most advantageous to us and our stockholders. In addition, the Board reserves the right, notwithstanding stockholder approval and without further action by the stockholders, to elect not to proceed with the Reverse Stock Split at any time prior to filing the Reverse Stock Split Amendment with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, if the Board, in its sole discretion, determines that it is no longer in our best interests or the best interests of our stockholders to proceed with the Reverse Stock Split. If our Board does not implement the Reverse Stock Split prior to the one-year anniversary of the date on which the Reverse Stock Split is approved by our stockholders at the 2025 Annual Meeting, the authority granted in this proposal to implement the Reverse Stock Split will terminate and the Reverse Stock Split will be abandoned.

Effect on Par Value; Reduction in Stated Capital. The proposed Reverse Stock Split will not affect the par value of our stock, which will remain at \$0.001 per share of Common Stock and \$0.001 per share of Preferred Stock. As a result, the stated capital on our balance sheet attributable to our Common Stock, which consists of the par value per share of Common Stock multiplied by the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding,

will be reduced in proportion to the Reverse Stock Split Ratio selected by the Board. Correspondingly, our additional paid-in capital account, which consists of the difference between our stated capital and the aggregate amount paid to the Company upon issuance of all currently outstanding shares of the Common Stock, will be increased by the amount by which the stated capital is reduced. Our stockholders' equity, in the aggregate, will remain unchanged.

Book-Entry Shares. If the Reverse Stock Split is effected, stockholders, either as direct or beneficial owners, will have their holdings electronically adjusted by our transfer agent (and, for beneficial owners, by their brokers or banks that hold in "street name" for their benefit, as the case may be) to give effect to the Reverse Stock Split. Banks, brokers, custodians or other nominees will be instructed to effect the Reverse Stock Split for their beneficial holders holding Common Stock in street name. However, these banks, brokers, custodians or other nominees may have different procedures than registered stockholders for processing the Reverse Stock Split and making payment for fractional shares. If a stockholder holds shares of Common Stock with a bank, broker, custodian or other nominee and has any questions in this regard, stockholders are encouraged to contact their bank, broker, custodian or other nominee. We do not issue physical certificates to stockholders.

No Appraisal Rights. Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, our stockholders are not entitled to dissenters' rights or appraisal rights with respect to the Reverse Stock Split described in the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, and we will not independently provide our stockholders with any such rights.

Fractional Shares. We do not intend to issue fractional shares in connection with the Reverse Stock Split. And, in lieu thereof, any person who would otherwise be entitled to a fractional share of Common Stock as a result of the reclassification and combination following the Effective Time (after taking into account all fractional shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable to such holder) shall be entitled to receive a cash payment equal to the number of shares of the Common Stock held by such stockholder before the Reverse Stock Split that would otherwise have been exchanged for such fractional share interest multiplied by the average closing sales price of the Common Stock as reported on the Nasdaq Capital Market for the ten days preceding the Effective Time. After the Reverse Stock Split is effected, a stockholder will have no further interest in our Company with respect to its fractional share interest and persons otherwise entitled to a fractional share will not have any voting, dividend or other rights with respect thereto, except to receive the above-described cash payment. Stockholders should be aware that under the escheat laws of various jurisdictions, sums due for fractional interests that are not timely claimed after the Effective Time may be required to be paid to the designated agent for each such jurisdiction. Stockholders otherwise entitled to receive such funds, who have not received them, will have to seek to obtain such funds directly from the jurisdiction to which they were paid.

Potential Anti-takeover Effects of the Reverse Stock Split

Release No. 34-15230 of the staff of the SEC requires disclosure and discussion of the effects of any action, including the proposals discussed herein, that may be used as an anti-takeover mechanism. Since the Reverse Stock Split, if effected, will result by the amount of the reduction effected by the Reverse Stock Split in a relative increase in the number of authorized but unissued shares of our Common Stock vis-à-vis the outstanding shares of our Common Stock and, could, under certain circumstances, have an anti-takeover effect, although this is not the purpose or intent of the Board. It could potentially deter takeovers, including takeovers that the Board has determined are not in the best interest of our stockholders, in that additional shares could be issued (within the limits imposed by applicable law) in one or more transactions that could make a change in control or takeover more difficult. For example, we could issue additional shares so as to dilute the stock ownership or voting rights of persons seeking to obtain control without our agreement. Similarly, the issuance of additional shares to certain persons allied with our management could have the effect of making it more difficult to remove our current management by diluting the stock ownership or voting rights of persons seeking to cause such removal. The increase in the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock therefore may have the effect of discouraging unsolicited takeover attempts. By potentially discouraging initiation of any such unsolicited takeover attempts, the Reverse Stock Split may limit the opportunity for our stockholders to dispose of their shares at the higher price generally available in takeover attempts or that may be available under a merger proposal.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations Related to the Reverse Stock Split

The following is a general summary of the material U.S. federal income tax considerations to U.S. holders (as defined below) of the Reverse Stock Split. This discussion is based upon current provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), existing and proposed Treasury regulations promulgated under the Code (the

"Treasury Regulations") and judicial authority and administrative interpretations, all as of the date of this document, and all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect, and are subject to differing interpretations. Changes in these authorities may cause the tax consequences to vary substantially from the consequences described below. We have not sought and will not seek an opinion of counsel or any rulings from the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") with respect to any of the tax considerations discussed below. As a result, there can be no assurance that the IRS will not assert, or that a court would not sustain, a position contrary to any of the conclusions set forth below.

This discussion is limited to U.S. holders (except to the extent such discussion explicitly addresses non-U.S. holders) that hold Common Stock as "capital assets" within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code (generally, property held for investment). This discussion does not address any tax consequences arising under the tax on net investment income or the alternative minimum tax, nor does it address any tax consequences arising under the laws of any state, local or non-U.S. jurisdiction, U.S. federal estate or gift tax laws, or any tax treaties. Furthermore, this discussion does not address all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be applicable to U.S. holders in light of their particular circumstances or to U.S. holders that may be subject to special rules under U.S. federal income tax laws, including, without limitation:

- · a bank, insurance company or other financial institution;
- a tax-exempt or a governmental organization;
- a real estate investment trust;
- an S corporation or other pass-through entity (or an investor in an S corporation or other pass-through entity);
- a regulated investment company or a mutual fund;
- a dealer or broker in stocks and securities, or currencies;
- a trader in securities that elects mark-to-market treatment;
- a holder of Common Stock that received such stock through the exercise of an employee option, pursuant to a retirement plan or otherwise as compensation;
- a person who holds Common Stock as part of a straddle, appreciated financial position, synthetic security, hedge, conversion transaction or other integrated investment or risk reduction transaction;
- a corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid U.S. federal income tax;
- a person whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar;
- a U.S. holder who holds Common Stock through non-U.S. brokers or other non-U.S. intermediaries;
- a U.S. holder owning or treated as owning 5% or more of the Company's Common Stock;
- a person subject to Section 451(b) of the Code; or
- a former citizen or long-term resident of the United States subject to Section 877 or 877A of the Code.

If a partnership, or any entity (or arrangement) treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, holds Common Stock, the tax treatment of a partner in such partnership generally will depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership and upon certain determinations made at the partner level. Partnerships holding Common Stock and partners in such partnerships should consult their own tax advisors about the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Reverse Stock Split.

For purposes of this discussion, a "U.S. holder" is a beneficial owner of shares of Common Stock that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

- an individual citizen or resident of the United States;
- a corporation (or any other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia;

- an estate, whose income is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or
- a trust (i) the administration of which is subject to the primary supervision of a U.S. court and that
 has one or more United States persons that have the authority to control all substantial decisions of
 the trust or (ii) that has made a valid election under applicable Treasury Regulations to be treated as
 a domestic trust.

A "non-U.S. holder" is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a beneficial owner of shares of Common Stock that is a not a U.S. holder or a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Tax Consequences of the Reverse Stock Split Generally

The Reverse Stock Split should constitute a "recapitalization" for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a result, a U.S. holder of Common Stock generally should not recognize gain or loss upon the Reverse Stock Split, except with respect to cash received in lieu of a fractional share of Common Stock, as discussed below. A U.S. holder's aggregate tax basis in the shares of Common Stock received pursuant to the Reverse Stock Split should equal the aggregate tax basis of the shares of Common Stock surrendered (excluding any portion of such basis that is allocated to any fractional share of Common Stock), and such U.S. holder's holding period in the shares of Common Stock received should include the holding period in the shares of Common Stock surrendered. Treasury Regulations provide detailed rules for allocating the tax basis and holding period of the shares of Common Stock surrendered to the shares of Common Stock received in a recapitalization pursuant to the Reverse Stock Split. U.S. holders of shares of Common Stock acquired on different dates and at different prices should consult their tax advisors regarding the allocation of the tax basis and holding period of such shares

Cash in Lieu of Fractional Shares

A U.S. holder of Common Stock that receives cash in lieu of a fractional share of Common Stock pursuant to the Reverse Stock Split and whose proportionate interest in us is reduced (after taking into account certain constructive ownership rules) should generally recognize capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount of cash received and the U.S. holder's tax basis in the shares of Common Stock surrendered that is allocated to such fractional share of Common Stock. Such capital gain or loss should be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. holder's holding period for Common Stock surrendered exceeds one year at the effective time of the Reverse Stock Split. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations. A U.S. holder that receives cash in lieu of a fractional share of our Common Stock pursuant to the Reverse Stock Split and whose proportionate interest in us is not reduced (after taking into account certain constructive ownership rules) should generally be treated as having received a distribution that will be treated first as dividend income to the extent paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits, and then as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of the U.S. holder's tax basis in our Common Stock, with any remaining amount being treated as capital gain. U.S. holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the tax effects to them of receiving cash in lieu of fractional shares based on their particular circumstances.

Non-U.S. Holders

Generally, non-U.S. holders will not recognize any gain or loss as a result of the Reverse Stock Split. In particular, gain or loss will not be recognized with respect to a non-U.S. holder that receives cash in lieu of a fractional share of Common Stock and whose proportionate interest in us is reduced (after taking into account certain constructive ownership rules) provided that (a) such gain or loss is not effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business by such non-U.S. holder in the United States (or, if certain income tax treaties apply, is not attributable to a non-U.S. holder's permanent establishment in the United States), (b) with respect to a non-U.S. holder who is an individual, such non-U.S. holder is present in the United States for less than 183 days in the taxable year of the Reverse Stock Split and other conditions are met, and (c) such non-U.S. holder complies with certain certification requirements. If such gain is effectively connected with the non-U.S. holder's conduct of a trade or business in the U.S., and if an applicable income tax treaty so provides, the gain is attributable to a permanent establishment or fixed base maintained by the non-U.S. holder in the United States, the non-U.S. holder will be taxed on a net income basis at the regular tax rates and in the manner applicable to U.S. holders, and if the non-U.S. holder is a corporation, an additional branch profits tax at a rate of 30%, or a lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty, may also apply. If the non-U.S. holder is an individual present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of the Reverse Stock Split and certain other requirements are met, the non-U.S. holder will be subject to a 30% tax (or such

lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty between the United States and such holder's country of residence) on the net gain from the exchange of the shares of our Common Stock, which may be offset by certain U.S.-source capital losses of the non-U.S. holder, if any.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to a non-U.S. holder that receives cash in lieu of a fractional share of our Common Stock pursuant to the Reverse Stock Split and whose proportionate interest in us is not reduced (after taking into account certain constructive ownership rules), the gain will be treated as a dividend rather than capital gain to the extent of the non-U.S. holder's ratable share of our current or accumulated earnings and profits as calculated for U.S. federal income tax purposes, then as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of (and in reduction of) the non-U.S. holder's aggregate adjusted tax basis in the shares, and any remaining amount will be treated as capital gain.

We will withhold U.S. federal income taxes equal to 30% of any cash payments made to a non-U.S. holder as a result of the Reverse Stock Split that may be treated as a dividend, unless such holder properly demonstrates that a reduced rate of U.S. federal income tax withholding or an exemption from such withholding is applicable. For example, an applicable income tax treaty may reduce or eliminate U.S. federal income tax withholding, in which case a non-U.S. holder claiming a reduction in (or exemption from) such tax must provide us with a properly completed IRS Form W-8BEN (or other appropriate IRS Form W-8) claiming the applicable treaty benefit. Alternatively, an exemption generally should apply if the non-U.S. holder's gain is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of such holder, and such holder provides us with an appropriate statement to that effect on a properly completed IRS Form W-8ECI.

Non-U.S. holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding possible dividend treatment and should consult their own tax advisor regarding the U.S. federal, state, local, and foreign income and other tax consequences of the Reverse Stock Split.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Cash payments received by a U.S. holder of Common Stock pursuant to the Reverse Stock Split may be subject to information reporting and may be subject to U.S. backup withholding (currently at 24%) unless such holder provides proof of an applicable exemption or a correct taxpayer identification number and otherwise complies with the applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules. In general, backup withholding and information reporting will not apply to payment of cash in lieu of a fractional share of Common Stock to a non-U.S. holder pursuant to the Reverse Stock Split if the non-U.S. holder certifies under penalties of perjury that it is a non-U.S. holder, and the applicable withholding agent does not have actual knowledge to the contrary. In certain circumstances the amount of cash paid to a non-U.S. holder in lieu of a fractional share of Common Stock, the name and address of the beneficial owner and the amount, if any, of tax withheld may be reported to the IRS. Any amount withheld under the U.S. backup withholding rules is not an additional tax and will generally be allowed as a refund or credit against the holder's U.S. federal income tax liability provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

FATCA

Under the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA"), withholding taxes may apply to certain types of payments made to "foreign financial institutions" (as specially defined in the Code) and certain other non-United States entities. Specifically, a 30% withholding tax may be imposed on dividends on stock paid to a foreign financial institution or to a non-financial foreign entity, unless (1) the foreign financial institution undertakes certain diligence and reporting, (2) the non-financial foreign entity either certifies it does not have any substantial United States owners or furnishes identifying information regarding each substantial United States owner, or (3) the foreign financial institution or non-financial foreign entity otherwise qualifies for an exemption from these rules. If the payee is a foreign financial institution and is subject to the diligence and reporting requirements in clause (1) above, then, pursuant to an agreement between it and the U.S. Treasury or an intergovernmental agreement between, generally, the jurisdiction in which it is resident and the U.S. Treasury, it must, among other things, identify accounts held by certain United States persons or United States-owned foreign entities, annually report certain information about such accounts and withhold 30% on payments to non-compliant foreign financial institutions and certain other account holders.

Any cash paid to a non-U.S. holder as a result of the Reverse Stock Split that is treated as dividend may be subject to withholding under FATCA unless the requirements set forth above are satisfied (if applicable) and appropriate certifications are made. While withholding under FATCA would have applied also to payments of gross proceeds

from the sale or other disposition of our Common Stock on or after January 1, 2019, proposed Treasury Regulations eliminate FATCA withholding on payments of gross proceeds entirely. Taxpayers generally may rely on these proposed Treasury Regulations until final Treasury Regulations are issued.

Interests of Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors and executive officers have no substantial interests, directly or indirectly, in the matters set forth in this proposal except to the extent of their ownership of shares of our Common Stock.

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by the holders of all shares of stock present or represented and voting on the Reverse Stock Split Proposal at the 2025 Annual Meeting is required to approve the Reverse Stock Split Proposal. Since abstentions are not considered votes cast, they will have no effect on this proposal. Broker non-votes are not expected for this proposal because we believe this matter is a routine matter.

The approval of Proposal 3, the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, at the 2025 Annual Meeting is not dependent on the approval of Proposal 4, the Authorized Increase Amendment. Conversely, approval by our stockholders of the Authorized Increase Amendment is not conditioned upon approval by our stockholders of the Reverse Stock Split, however, if the stockholders should approve the Reverse Stock Split and the Board of Directors should implement the Reverse Stock Split, the number of shares of Common Stock authorized but unissued after implementing the Reverse Stock Split may impact the decision as to whether or not to effect the Authorized Increase Amendment since effecting the Reverse Stock Split will provide for additional shares of unissued authorized Common Stock.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" THE APPROVAL OF THE REVERSE STOCK SPLIT.

PROPOSAL 4 AUTHORIZED INCREASE PROPOSAL

The Board has adopted a resolution setting forth a proposed amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (a copy of which is set forth in the certificate of amendment annexed to this Proxy Statement as Annex B) to increase the number of shares of our authorized Common Stock from the 100,000,000 that are currently authorized pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to 500,000,000 shares of Common Stock, declaring such amendment advisable, and is recommending that our stockholders approve, such proposed amendment. Such amendment will be effected after stockholder approval thereof only in the event the Board still deems it advisable. Holders of the Common Stock are being asked to approve the proposal that the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation be amended to effect the increase in the authorized shares of Common Stock (the "Increase"). If the Authorized Increase Proposal is approved by our stockholders and the Board deems it advisable, the increase in the authorized number of shares of Common Stock will be effected by filing a certificate of amendment with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. If the Board does not effect the increase in the authorized number of shares of Common Stock prior to the oneyear anniversary of the 2025 Annual Meeting, this vote will be of no further force and effect and the Board will again seek stockholder approval before implementing any such increase after that time. The Board may abandon the proposed amendment to increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock at any time prior to its effectiveness, whether before or after stockholder approval thereof.

The Board of Directors proposes and recommends increasing the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from the 100,000,000 shares that are currently authorized for issuance pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to a total of 500,000,000 shares of Common Stock. Of our 100,000,000 shares of currently authorized Common Stock, 3,264,625 shares were outstanding as of July 31, 2025, and after taking into account (i) shares underlying outstanding warrants and options, and (ii) the reservation of shares for issuance under our stock incentive plans, assuming the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal is adopted, and (iii) the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued under convertible notes that have not yet been issued but that we have a right to cause to be issued if certain conditions are met, approximately 92,135,059 of the 100,000,000 shares authorized in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation would be available for issuance.

The chart below illustrates the number of shares of Common Stock that will be available for issuance if both the increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock and the Reverse Stock Split are effected based on a 1-for-5 reverse stock split ratio. The number of shares disclosed in the column "Estimated Number of shares of Common Stock before Reverse Stock Split and before Authorized Shares Increase" reflects the approximate number of shares as of July 31, 2025. The number of shares disclosed in the column "Estimated number of shares of Common Stock after the Increase and before the Reverse Stock Split" gives further effect to the increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from 100,000,000 to 500,000,000 and assumes that the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal is approved. The number of shares disclosed in the column "Estimated number of shares of Common Stock

after Reverse Stock Split and after the Increase" gives further effect to the Reverse Stock Split based on a 1-for-5 reverse stock split ratio and also gives effect to the increase in authorized shares of Common Stock described in this Proposal 4 and assumes that the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal is adopted, but does not take into account any fractional shares or adjustment with respect thereto.

	Estimated number of shares of Common Stock before Reverse Stock Split and before Increase (Assuming the 2023 Plan Amendment is Adopted)	Estimated number of shares of Common Stock after the Increase and before the Reverse Stock Split (Assuming the 2023 Plan Amendment is Adopted)	Estimated number of shares of Common Stock after Reverse Stock Split and after the Increase (Assuming the 2023 Plan Amendment is Adopted) ⁽³⁾ at Reverse Stock Split Ratio of 1:5
Authorized	100,000,000	500,000,000	500,000,000
Outstanding	3,264,625	3,264,625	652,925
Issuable under Outstanding Warrants	1,518,102	1,518,102	303,620
Issuable under Outstanding Stock Options	1,318,859	1,318,859	263,772
Reserved for Issuance ⁽¹⁾	1,763,355	1,763,355	352,671
Authorized but Unissued(2)	92,135,059	492,136,059	498,427,012

Shares reserved for future issuance under our existing equity incentive plans and assuming the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal is approved, excluding shares issuable under outstanding stock options.

The Board of Directors currently believes that the increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock is advisable and in our best interest and the best interest of our stockholders. The increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock will provide us with flexibility in completing financing and capital raising transactions, which may be necessary for us to execute our future business plans. Other possible business and financial uses for the additional shares of Common Stock include, without limitation, attracting and retaining employees by the issuance of additional securities, and other transactions and corporate purposes that the Board may deem are in our best interest. We could also use the additional shares of Common Stock for potential strategic transactions, including, among other things, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures, restructurings, business combinations and investments. We believe that the additional authorized shares would enable us to act quickly in response to opportunities that may arise for these types of transactions, in most cases without the necessity of obtaining further stockholder approval and holding a special stockholders' meeting before such issuance(s) could proceed, except as provided under Delaware law, as applicable, or under applicable Nasdaq rules. As of the date of this Proxy Statement, and other than upon issuance of currently outstanding securities exercisable into or convertible into the Common Stock, we have no arrangements or understandings regarding the additional shares that would be authorized or immediate plans to consummate any such transactions. However, we review and evaluate potential capital raising activities, transactions and other corporate actions on an ongoing basis to determine if such actions would be in our best interest and the best interest of our stockholders. We cannot provide assurances that any such transactions will be consummated on favorable terms or at all, that they will enhance stockholder value, or that they will not adversely affect our business or the trading price of the Common Stock.

Although approval by our stockholders of the Reverse Stock Split is not conditioned upon approval by our stockholders of the Increase; conversely, approval by our stockholder of the Increase is not conditioned upon approval by our stockholders of the Reverse Stock Split, if the stockholders should approve the Reverse Stock Split and the Board of Directors should implement the Reverse Stock Split, the number of shares of Common Stock authorized but unissued after implementing the Reverse Stock Split may impact the decision as to whether or not to effect the Increase since effecting the Reverse Stock Split will provide for additional shares of unissued authorized Common Stock.

⁽²⁾ Shares authorized but unissued represent shares of Common Stock available for future issuance beyond shares currently outstanding, shares issuable under outstanding warrants and stock options and shares reserved for issuance under equity incentive plans (assuming approval of the amendment to the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal).

⁽³⁾ The shares presented are an estimate as we do not know the number of fractional share rounding that will be required to effectuate the Reverse Stock Split for individual accounts.

The increase in the number of shares of authorized Common Stock would not have any immediate dilutive effect on the proportionate voting power or other rights of existing stockholders.

As is true for shares presently authorized but unissued, the future issuance of Common Stock authorized by the increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock may, among other things, decrease existing stockholders' percentage equity ownership, could be dilutive to the voting rights of existing stockholders and, depending on the price at which they are issued could have a negative effect on the market price of the Common Stock. In addition, an increase in the number of shares of our authorized Common Stock could result in an increase in the franchise tax that we would owe to the State of Delaware.

Potential Anti-takeover Effects of the Increase

Release No. 34-15230 of the staff of the SEC requires disclosure and discussion of the effects of any action, including the proposals discussed herein, that may be used as an anti-takeover mechanism. Since the amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation will provide that the number of authorized shares of Common Stock will be 500,000,000, the increase in the number of shares of authorized Common Stock, if effected, will result in a relative increase in the number of authorized but unissued shares of our Common Stock vis-à-vis the outstanding shares of our Common Stock and, could, under certain circumstances, have an anti-takeover effect, although this is not the purpose or intent of the Board. It could potentially deter takeovers, including takeovers that the Board has determined are not in the best interest of our stockholders, in that additional shares could be issued (within the limits imposed by applicable law) in one or more transactions that could make a change in control or takeover more difficult. For example, we could issue additional shares so as to dilute the stock ownership or voting rights of persons seeking to obtain control without our agreement. Similarly, the issuance of additional shares to certain persons allied with our management could have the effect of making it more difficult to remove our current management by diluting the stock ownership or voting rights of persons seeking to cause such removal. The increase in the number of shares of authorized Common Stock therefore may have the effect of discouraging unsolicited takeover attempts. By potentially discouraging initiation of any such unsolicited takeover attempts, the Increase may limit the opportunity for our stockholders to dispose of their shares at the higher price generally available in takeover attempts or that may be available under a merger proposal.

Interests of Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors and executive officers have no substantial interests, directly or indirectly, in the matters set forth in this proposal except to the extent of their ownership of shares of our Common Stock.

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by the holders of all shares of stock present or represented and voting on the Authorized Increase Proposal at the 2025 Annual Meeting is required to approve the Authorized Increase Proposal. Since abstentions are not considered votes cast, they will have no effect on this proposal. Broker non-votes are not expected for this proposal because we believe this matter is a routine matter.

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR APPROVAL OF THE AUTHORIZED INCREASE PROPOSAL.

PROPOSAL 5 APPROVAL OF THE 2023 PLAN AMENDMENT PROPOSAL

The 2023 Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2023 Plan") was approved and adopted on February 28, 2023 by our Board of Directors as well as our sole stockholder on such date. The 2023 Plan, as adopted, reserved an aggregate of was 200,000 shares (as adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split that we effected in October 2024) for issuance thereunder. On January 1, 2024, 459,000 shares of the Company's common stock were added to the 2023 Plan pursuant to this evergreen provision. On January 1, 2025, 66,784 shares of the Company's common stock were added to the 2023 Plan pursuant to the evergreen provision. In August 2025, our Board approved, subject to stockholder approval, an amendment to the 2023 Plan to increase the number of shares authorized for issuance thereunder by 1,200,000 shares of common stock. The proposed amendment to the 2023 Plan (the "2023 Plan Amendment"), is attached hereto as Annex C.

A summary of the 2023 Plan, as proposed to be amended, is set forth below. This summary is qualified in its entirety by the full text of the proposed 2023 Plan Amendment.

Reasons for the Proposed Amendment

The Board recommends that stockholders vote "FOR" the adoption of the 2023 Plan Amendment to increase the number of shares of Common Stock available under the Plan. In making such recommendation, the Board considered a number of factors, including the following:

- Equity-based compensation awards are a critical element of our overall compensation program. We
 believe that our long-term incentive compensation program aligns the interests of management,
 employees and the stockholders to create long-term stockholder value. The 2023 Plan Amendment
 will allow us to continue to attract, motivate and retain our officers, key employees, non-employee
 directors and consultants.
- We believe the current amount of shares remaining available for grant under the 2023 Plan are not
 sufficient in light of our compensation structure and strategy, and that the additional shares being
 sought will ensure that we continue to have a sufficient number of shares of Common Stock
 available for future awards issued under the 2023 Plan Amendment.

Stockholders are asked to approve the 2023 Plan Amendment to satisfy Nasdaq requirements relating to stockholder approval of equity compensation and to qualify certain options under the 2023 Plan for treatment as incentive stock options under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Text of the Amendment

The proposed 2023 Plan Amendment is attached hereto as <u>Annex C</u>. The proposed 2023 Plan Amendment increases the number of shares of Common Stock reserved for issuance of awards under the 2023 Plan by 1,200,000 to 1,489,859 shares.

As of the Record Date, we have 289,859 shares of Common Stock available for future issuance under the 2023 Plan (not including future increases under the 2023 Plan's current evergreen provision). We do not believe that the number of awards remaining available for grant under the 2023 Plan is sufficient to enable us to retain and recruit employees, officers, non-employee directors and other individual service providers, and aligning and increasing their interests in our success. We estimate that with the 2023 Plan Amendment, we will have a sufficient number of shares to cover issuances under the 2023 Plan through the end of 2026.

In the event that our stockholders do not approve this proposal, the 2023 Plan Amendment will not become effective and awards will continue to be made under the 2023 Plan to the limited extent that there are available shares to do so.

Burn Rate

The following table sets forth information regarding the awards granted, the burn rate for each of the last two years and the average burn rate over the last two years. The burn rate has been calculated as the quotient of (i) the sum of all RSU granted in such year, divided by (ii) the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for each such year.

Element	2023	2024
RSUs Granted ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾	86,875	170,875
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic	146,628	910,476
Annual Burn Rate	59.25%	18.77%
Two-Year Average Burn Rate	39.0%	

- (1) Reflects the gross number of shares underlying awards made to employees during the respective year.
- (2) Not adjusted for forfeitures, withholdings and expirations, which would reduce the burn rate if taken into account.

Summary of the 2023 Plan

The principal purpose of the 2023 Plan is to attract, retain and incentivize the Company's employees and other service providers through the granting of certain stock-based awards, including performance-based awards. The material terms of the 2023 Plan are summarized below.

Administration

The 2023 Plan vests broad powers in a committee to administer and interpret the 2023 Plan. Our Board of Directors has initially designated the Compensation Committee to administer the 2023 Plan. Except when limited by the terms of the 2023 Plan, the Compensation Committee has the authority to, among other things: select the persons to be granted awards; determine the type, size and term of awards; establish performance objectives and conditions for earning awards; determine whether such performance objectives and conditions have been met; and accelerate the vesting or exercisability of an award. In its discretion, the Compensation Committee may delegate all or part of its authority and duties with respect to granting awards to one or more of our officers, subject to certain limitations and provided applicable law so permits.

Our Board of Directors may amend, alter or discontinue the 2023 Plan and the Compensation Committee may amend any outstanding award at any time; provided, however, that no such amendment or termination may adversely affect awards then outstanding without the holder's permission. In addition, any amendments seeking to increase the total number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2023 Plan or modifying the classes of participants eligible to receive awards under the 2023 Plan will require ratification by our stockholders in accordance with applicable law. Additionally, as described more fully below, neither the Compensation Committee nor the Board of Directors is permitted to reprice outstanding options or stock appreciation rights without stockholder consent.

Eligibility

Any of our employees, directors, consultants, and other service providers, or those of our affiliates, are eligible to participate in the 2023 Plan and may be selected by the Compensation Committee to receive an award.

Vesting

The Compensation Committee determines the vesting conditions for awards. These conditions may include the continued employment or service of the participant, the attainment of specific individual or corporate performance goals, or other factors as determined in the Compensation Committee's discretion (collectively, "Vesting Conditions").

Shares of Stock Available for Issuance

Subject to certain adjustments, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the 2023 Plan in connection with awards initially was 200,000 shares (as adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split that we effected in October 2024). In addition, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the 2023 Plan will automatically increase on January 1 of each calendar year for a period of ten years commencing on January 1, 2024 and ending on (and including) January 1, 2033, in a number of shares of Common Stock equal to 4.5%

of the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding calendar year; provided, however that the Board of Directors may act prior to January 1 of a given calendar year to provide that the increase for such year will be a lesser number of shares of Common Stock. On January 1, 2024, 459,000 shares of the Company's common stock were added to the 2023 Plan pursuant to this evergreen provision. On January 1, 2025, 66,784 shares of the Company's common stock were added to the 2023 Plan pursuant to the evergreen provision. All available shares may be utilized toward the grant of any type of award under the 2023 Plan. The 2023 Plan imposes a limitation on the total number of shares of Common Stock with respect to which awards may be granted to any non-employee director in his or her capacity as a non-employee director in any single calendar year of 50,000 shares (as adjusted to reflect the Reverse Stock Split).

In the event of any merger, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, split up, spin-off, combination of shares, exchange of shares, stock dividend, dividend in kind, or other like change in capital structure (other than ordinary cash dividends), or other similar corporate event or transaction that affects our Common Stock, the Compensation Committee shall make adjustments to the number and kind of shares authorized by the 2023 Plan and covered under outstanding 2023 Plan awards as it determines appropriate and equitable. Shares subject to 2023 Plan awards that expire without being fully exercised or that are otherwise forfeited, cancelled or terminated may again be made available for issuance under the 2023 Plan. However, shares withheld in settlement of a tax withholding obligation, or in satisfaction of the exercise price payable upon exercise of an option, will not again become available for issuance under the 2023 Plan.

Types of Awards

The following types of awards may be granted to participants under the 2023 Plan include: (i) incentive stock options, or ISOs, (ii) nonqualified stock options, or NQOs and together with ISOs, options, (iii) stock appreciation rights, (iv) restricted stock, or (v) restricted stock units.

Stock Options. An option entitles the holder to purchase from us a stated number of shares of Common Stock. An ISO may only be granted to an employee of ours or our eligible affiliates. The Compensation Committee will specify the number of shares of Common Stock subject to each option and the exercise price for such option, provided that the exercise price may not be less than the fair market value of a share of Common Stock on the date the option is granted. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if ISOs are granted to any 10% stockholder, the exercise price shall not be less than 110% of the fair market value of Common Stock on the date the option is granted.

Generally, options may be exercised in whole or in part through a cash payment. The Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, permit payment of the exercise price of an option in the form of previously acquired shares based on the fair market value of the shares on the date the option is exercised, through means of "net settlement," which involves the cancellation of a portion of the option to cover the cost of exercising the balance of the option or by such other means as it deems acceptable.

All options shall be or become exercisable in accordance with the terms of the applicable award agreement. The maximum term of an option shall be determined by the Compensation Committee on the date of grant but shall not exceed 10 years (5 years in the case of ISOs granted to any 10% stockholder). In the case of ISOs, the aggregate fair market value (determined as of the date of grant) of Common Stock with respect to which such ISOs become exercisable for the first time during any calendar year cannot exceed \$100,000. ISOs granted in excess of this limitation will be treated as non-qualified stock options.

Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement or determined by the Compensation Committee, if a participant terminates employment with us (or our affiliates) due to death or disability, the participant's unexercised options may be exercised, to the extent they were exercisable on the termination date, for a period of twelve months from the termination date or until the expiration of the original award term, whichever period is shorter. If the participant terminates employment with us (or our affiliates) for cause, (i) all unexercised options (whether vested or unvested) shall terminate and be forfeited on the termination date, and (ii) any shares in respect of exercised options rights for which we have not yet delivered share certificates will be forfeited and we will refund to the participant the option exercise price paid for those shares, if any. If the participant's employment terminates for any other reason, any vested but unexercised options may be exercised by the participant, to the extent exercisable at the time of termination, for a period of ninety days from the termination date (or such time as specified by the Compensation Committee at or after grant) or until the expiration of the original option, whichever period is shorter. Unless otherwise provided by the Compensation Committee, any options that are not exercisable at the time of termination of employment shall terminate and be forfeited on the termination date.

Stock Appreciation Rights. A stock appreciation right represents the right to receive, upon exercise, any appreciation in a share of Common Stock over a particular time period. The base price of a stock appreciation right shall not be less than the fair market value of a share of Common Stock on the date the stock appreciation right is granted. This award is intended to mirror the benefit the participant would have received if the Compensation Committee had granted the participant an option. The maximum term of a stock appreciation right shall be determined by the Compensation Committee on the date of grant but shall not exceed 10 years. Distributions with respect to stock appreciation rights may be made in cash, shares of Common Stock, or a combination of both, at the Compensation Committee's discretion. Stock appreciation rights may be earlier terminated as specified by the Compensation Committee and set forth in an award agreement upon or following the termination of a participant's service, including by reason of voluntary resignation, death, disability, termination for cause or any other reason.

Restricted Stock. A restricted stock award is a grant of shares of Common Stock, which are subject to forfeiture restrictions during a restriction period. The Compensation Committee will determine the price, if any, to be paid by the participant for each share of Common Stock subject to a restricted stock award. The restricted stock may be subject to Vesting Conditions. If the specified Vesting Conditions are not attained, the participant will forfeit the portion of the restricted stock award with respect to which those conditions are not attained, and the underlying Common Stock will be forfeited to us. At the end of the restriction period, if the Vesting Conditions have been satisfied, the restrictions imposed will lapse with respect to the applicable number of shares. Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement or determined by the Compensation Committee, upon termination a participant will forfeit all restricted stock that then remains subject to forfeiture restrictions.

Restricted Stock Units. Restricted stock units are granted in reference to a specified number of shares of Common Stock and entitle the holder to receive, on the achievement of applicable Vesting Conditions, shares of Common Stock. Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement or determined by the Compensation committee, upon termination a participant will forfeit all restricted stock units that then remain subject to forfeiture.

Change in Control

In the event of a change in control, the Compensation Committee may, on a participant-by-participant basis: (i) cause any or all outstanding awards to become vested and immediately exercisable (as applicable), in whole or in part; (ii) cause any outstanding option or stock appreciation right to become fully vested and immediately exercisable for a reasonable period in advance of the change in control and, to the extent not exercised prior to that change in control, cancel that option or stock appreciation right upon closing of the change in control; (iii) cancel any unvested award or unvested portion thereof, with or without consideration; (iv) cancel any award in exchange for a substitute award; (v) redeem any restricted stock or restricted stock unit for cash and/or other substitute consideration with value equal to the fair market value of an unrestricted share on the date of the change in control; (vi) cancel any outstanding option or stock appreciation right with respect to all Common Stock for which the award remains unexercised in exchange for a cash payment equal to the excess (if any) of the fair market value of the Common Stock subject to the option or stock appreciation right over the exercise price of the option or stock appreciation right; (vii) impose vesting terms on cash or substitute consideration payable upon cancellation of an award that are substantially similar to those that applied to the cancelled award immediately prior to the change in control, and/or earn-out, escrow, holdback or similar arrangements, to the extent such arrangements are applicable to any consideration paid to stockholders in connection with the change in control; (viii) take such other action as the Compensation Committee shall determine to be reasonable under the circumstances; and/or (ix) in the case of any award subject to Section 409A of the Code, the Compensation Committee shall only be permitted to use discretion to alter the settlement timing of the award to the extent that such discretion would be permitted under Section 409A of the Code.

Repricing

Neither our Board of Directors nor the Compensation Committee may, without obtaining prior approval of our stockholders: (i) implement any cancellation/re-grant program pursuant to which outstanding options or stock appreciation rights under the 2023 Plan are cancelled and new options or stock appreciation rights are granted in replacement with a lower exercise per share; (ii) cancel outstanding options or stock appreciation rights under the 2023 Plan with an exercise price per share in excess of the then current fair market value per share for consideration payable in our equity securities; or (iii) otherwise directly reduce the exercise price in effect for outstanding options or stock appreciation rights under the 2023 Plan.

Miscellaneous

Generally, awards granted under the 2023 Plan shall be nontransferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. No participant shall have any rights as a stockholder with respect to shares covered by options or restricted stock units, unless and until such awards are settled in shares of Common Stock. The Company's obligation to issue shares or to otherwise make payments in respect of 2023 Plan awards will be conditioned on the Company's ability to do so in compliance with all applicable laws and exchange listing requirements. The awards will be subject to our recoupment and stock ownership policies, as may be in effect from time to time. The 2023 Plan will expire 10 years after it becomes effective.

New Plan Benefits

The grant of options and other awards under the 2023 Plan is discretionary, and we cannot determine now the number or type of options or other awards to be granted in the future to any particular person or group other than the anticipated annual director grants.

Since it is not possible to determine the exact number of awards that will be granted under the 2023 Plan, the awards granted during fiscal 2024 under the 2023 Plan are set forth in the following table.

Name and position	Dollar Value	Number of Restricted Stock Units
David Villareal, Chief Executive Officer	\$ 240,720	850,000
Nicolai Brune, Chief Financial Officer	\$ 113,280	400,000
All Current Executive Officers as a Group	\$ 354,000	
All Current Non-employee Directors as a Group	\$ 401,075	430,000

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Treatment of Options and Awards

The following is a summary of the effect of U.S. federal income taxation on the participants in the 2023 Plan and the Company. However, it does not purport to be complete and does not describe the state, local or foreign tax considerations or the consequences for any particular individual.

Incentive Stock Options ("ISO")

An ISO results in neither taxable income to the optionee, nor a deduction to the Company at the time it is granted or exercised. If the optionee holds the stock received as a result of an exercise of an ISO for at least two years from the date of the grant and one year from the date of exercise, then the gain realized on disposition of the stock is treated as a long-term capital gain. If the shares are disposed of during this period, however (*i.e.*, a "disqualifying disposition"), then the optionee will include the income, as ordinary compensation for the year of the disposition, in an amount equal to the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the shares, upon exercise of the option over the option price (or, if less, the excess of the amount realized upon disposition over the option price). The excess, if any, of the sale price over the fair market value on the date of exercise will be a short-term capital gain. In such case, the Company will be entitled to a deduction, in the year of such a disposition, for the amount includible in the optionee's income as compensation, subject to the limitations of Section 162(m) of the Code. The optionee's tax basis in the shares acquired upon exercise of an ISO is equal to the option price paid, plus any amount includible in his or her income as a result of a disqualifying disposition.

Non-Qualified Stock Options ("NSO")

A NSO results in no taxable income to the optionee or deduction to the Company at the time it is granted. An optionee exercising a NSO will, at that time, realize taxable compensation in the amount of the excess of the then market value of the shares over the option price. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Code, including the limitations of Section 162(m), a deduction for federal income tax purposes will be allowable to the Company in the year of exercise in an amount equal to the taxable compensation realized by the optionee. The optionee's tax basis in shares received upon exercise is equal to the sum of the option price plus the amount includible in his or her income as compensation upon exercise.

Any gain (or loss) upon subsequent disposition of the shares will be a long- or short-term gain (or loss), depending upon the holding period of the shares.

If a NSO is exercised by tendering previously owned shares of the Company's Common Stock in payment of the option price, then, instead of the treatment described above, the following will apply: a number of new shares equal to the number of previously owned shares tendered will be considered to have been received in a tax-free exchange; the optionee's basis and holding period for such number of new shares will be equal to the basis and holding period of the previously owned shares exchanged. The optionee will have compensation income equal to the fair market value on the date of exercise of the number of new shares received in excess of such number of exchanged shares; the optionee's basis in such excess shares will be equal to the amount of such compensation income; and the holding period in such shares will begin on the date of exercise.

Stock Appreciation Rights ("SAR")

Generally, the recipient of a stand-alone SAR will not recognize taxable income at the time the stand-alone SAR is granted.

If the grantee receives the appreciation inherent in the SAR (change in stock price plus dividends from grant date to settlement date) in cash, the cash will be taxed as ordinary income to the employee at the time it is received. If the grantee receives the appreciation inherent in the SAR in stock, the value of the stock received is taxable as ordinary income at the fair market value of the stock.

In general, there will be no federal income tax deduction allowed to the Company upon the grant or termination of SARs. However, upon the settlement of a SAR, the Company will be entitled to a deduction equal to the amount of ordinary income the recipient is required to recognize as a result of the settlement, subject to the limitations of Section 162(m) of the Code.

Restricted Stock Awards/Performance Stock Awards

No income will be recognized at the time of grant by the recipient of a restricted stock award or performance stock award while such award is subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. Generally, at the time the substantial risk of forfeiture terminates with respect to a stock award, the then fair market value of the stock awarded will constitute ordinary income to the employee. Subject to the applicable limitations of Section 162(m), a deduction for federal income tax purposes will be allowable to the Company in an amount equal to the compensation realized by the recipient.

Other Awards

In the case of an award of RSUs, performance awards, dividend equivalents or dividend equivalent units or other stock or cash awards, the recipient will generally recognize ordinary income in an amount equal to any cash received and the fair market value of any shares received on the date of payment or delivery. In that taxable year, the Company will receive a federal income tax deduction in an amount equal to the ordinary income which the recipient has recognized, subject to the limitations of Section 162(m) of the Code.

Market Price of Shares

The closing price of our Common Stock, as reported on Nasdaq on August 28,2025, was \$1.18.

The following table provides information with respect to our compensation plans under which equity compensation was authorized as of December 31, 2024.

Plan Category	Number of Shares Issuable Upon Exercise of Outstanding Options, Warrants or Rights (a)(1)	Weighted- Average Exercise Price of Outstanding Options (b)	Number of Shares Remaining Available for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (Excluding Shares Reflected in Column (a)(c) ⁽²⁾
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders	1,831,250	\$ N/A	2,168,750
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders	_	_	_
Total	1,831,250	\$ N/A	2,168,750

⁽¹⁾ Includes 1,831,250 shares issuable upon the vesting of restricted stock units outstanding under the 2023 Plan.

Interests of Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors and executive officers have substantial interests in the matters set forth in this proposal since equity awards may be granted to them under the 2023 Plan.

Vote Required

To be approved, the 2023 Plan Amendment must receive the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present or represented by proxy at the 2025 Annual Meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal. Abstentions, which are considered present and entitled to vote on this matter, will have the same effect as a vote **AGAINST** this proposal. Broker non-votes will have no effect on this proposal because it is a non-routine matter for which they are not entitled to vote without instructions on how to vote.

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR" APPROVAL OF THE 2023 PLAN AMENDMENT PROPOSAL.

⁽²⁾ The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the 2023 Plan will automatically increase on January 1 of each calendar year for a period of ten years commencing on January 1, 2024 and ending on (and including) January 1, 2033, in a number of shares of Common Stock equal to 4.5% of the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding calendar year; provided, however that the Board of Directors may act prior to January 1 of a given calendar year to provide that the increase for such year will be a lesser number of shares of Common Stock. On January 1, 2024, 459,000 shares of the Company's common stock were added to the 2023 Plan pursuant to this evergreen provision. On January 1, 2025, 66,784 shares of the Company's common stock were added to the 2023 Plan pursuant to the evergreen provision.

PROPOSAL 6 APPROVAL OF RESOURCE GROUP PROPOSAL

Reasons for the Resource Group Proposal

Our Common Stock is listed on the Nasdaq and, as such, we are subject to the Nasdaq Listing Rules. We are seeking stockholder approval of the Resource Group Proposal in order to comply with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635.

Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(d) requires stockholder approval of transactions other than a public offering involving the sale or issuance by the issuer of common stock (or securities convertible into or exercisable for common stock) equal to 20% or more of the common stock or 20% or more of the voting power outstanding before the issuance for a price that is less than the lower of: (i) the closing price of the common stock immediately preceding the signing of the binding agreement for the issuance of such securities; or (ii) the average closing price of the common stock for the five trading days immediately preceding the signing of the binding agreement for the issuance of such securities.

On June 2, 2025, in connection with the closing of the acquisition of Resource Group, we issued to the members of Resource Group (the "Equityholders") an aggregate of: (i) 376,818 shares of our Common Stock, representing 19.99% of our issued and outstanding shares as of February 25, 2025; (ii) 1,500,000 shares of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock; and (iii) \$480,000 in principal amount of unsecured 6% promissory notes due on the first anniversary of the closing. We also agreed pursuant to the Resource MIPA to issue an aggregate of 41,182 additional shares of our Common Stock (the "Additional Common Shares") to the Equityholders upon the approval of such issuance by our stockholders and provided that we continue to meet and are eligible to meet the Nasdaq continued listing requirements.

Subject to, and following, the approval by our stockholders of the issuance of our Common Stock upon the conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, each share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock will be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time and from time to time, and without the payment of additional consideration by the holder thereof, into six shares of Common Stock, such that the 1,500,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock would be convertible into an aggregate of 9,000,000 shares of our Common Stock, subject to the Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(b), which prohibits the conversion of any shares of the Preferred Stock that would result in a change of control, which is defined as a holder beneficially owning in excess of twenty percent (20%) of our outstanding Common Stock and becoming our largest shareholder.

Based upon Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(d), we cannot issue in excess of 376,818 shares of our Common Stock (representing 19.99% of our issued and outstanding shares as of February 25, 2025, the date we first entered into the Resource MIPA) in connection with our acquisition of Resource Group, unless the issuance of such excess shares is approved by our stockholders. We are asking stockholders to approve the issuance of more than 20% of our issued and outstanding Common Stock as of February 25, 2025 pursuant to the Resource MIPA, including the 41,182 Additional Common Shares and the 9,000,000 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Equityholder will be authorized to convert the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock if at the time of such conversion, the conversion would result in a change of control under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(b) above. Accordingly, stockholder approval will not initially result in the Equityholders being able to fully convert the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and will only allow for such full conversion at such time as our outstanding share number increases.

The Board is not seeking the approval of our stockholders to authorize our entry into or consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Resource MIPA, as the acquisition has already been completed and the shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock have already been issued. We are only asking for approval to issue to the Equityholders in the aggregate, pursuant to the Resource MIPA, more than 20% of our issued and outstanding Common Stock as of February 25, 2025 (the date we first entered into the Resource MIPA), including the issuance of the Additional Common Shares and upon the conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

Potential Consequences if Proposal No. 6 is Not Approved

If stockholders do not approve the Resource Group Proposal, we will not be able to issue to the Equityholders the 41,182 Additional Common Shares and the 9,000,000 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock which we contractually committed to issue to them (subject to stockholder approval) pursuant to the Resource MIPA.

Potential Adverse Effects of the Approval of Proposal No. 6

The issuance of shares of Common Stock to the Equityholders pursuant to the terms of the Resource MIPA and the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock will not affect the rights of the holders of our outstanding Common Stock, but such issuances will have a dilutive effect on our existing stockholders, including the voting power and economic rights of existing stockholders, and may result in a decline in our stock price or greater price volatility. Further, any sales in the public market of our Common Stock issuable to the Equityholders could adversely affect prevailing market prices of our Common Stock.

No Appraisal Rights

No appraisal rights are available under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or our Amended and Restated Bylaws with respect to the Resource Group Proposal.

Required Vote

To be approved, the Resource Group Proposal must receive the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present or represented by proxy at the 2025 Annual Meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal. Abstentions, which are considered present and entitled to vote on this matter, will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST this proposal. Broker non-votes will have no effect on this proposal because it is a non-routine matter for which they are not entitled to vote without instructions on how to vote.

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR" APPROVAL OF THE RESOURCE GROUP PROPOSAL.

PROPOSAL 7 APPROVAL OF THE ADJOURNMENT PROPOSAL

Background of and Rationale for the Adjournment Proposal

The Board of Directors believes if at the 2025 Annual Meeting the number of votes represented by shares of the Common Stock, present or represented and voting in favor of the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, the Authorized Increase Proposal, the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal and/or the Resource Group Proposal is insufficient to approve either proposal, it is in the best interests of the stockholders to enable the Board to continue to seek to obtain a sufficient number of additional votes to approve such proposals.

In the Adjournment Proposal, we are asking stockholders to authorize the holder of any proxy solicited by the Board to vote in favor of adjourning or postponing the 2025 Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. If our stockholders approve this proposal, we could adjourn or postpone the 2025 Annual Meeting, and any adjourned session of the 2025 Annual Meeting, to use the additional time to solicit additional proxies in favor of the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, the Authorized Increase Proposal, the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal and/or the Resource Group Proposal.

Additionally, approval of the Adjournment Proposal could mean that, in the event we receive proxies representing a sufficient number of votes against the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, and/or the Authorized Increase Proposal, and/or the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal, and/or the Resource Group Proposal, we could adjourn or postpone the 2025 Annual Meeting without a vote on the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, the Authorized Increase Proposal, the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal and/or the Resource Group Proposal and use the additional time to solicit the holders of those shares to change their vote in favor of the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, the Authorized Increase Proposal, the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal and/or the Resource Group Proposal.

Vote Required

To be approved, the Adjournment Proposal must receive the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present or represented by proxy at the 2025 Annual Meeting and entitled to vote on the proposal. Abstentions, which are considered present and entitled to vote on this matter, will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST this proposal. Broker non-votes are not expected for this proposal because we believe this matter is a routine matter.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" APPROVAL OF THE ADJOURNMENT PROPOSAL.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS WHO ARE NOT DIRECTORS

Nicolai Brune, age 27, has served as the Chief Financial Officer of SG DevCo since February 14, 2023. From March 2022 to February 2023, Mr. Brune served as Director of Acquisition for SG Holdings responsible for financial evaluation and modeling of all potential acquisitions, investments and divestitures. Prior to joining SG Holdings, Mr. Brune served as a Treasury Analyst at GL Homes, a large private real estate developer/home builder in the state of Florida, from June 2020 to March 2022. At GL Homes, Mr. Brune was tasked with reviewing financial transactions, examining cash flows and maintaining and preparing monthly performance reports. From June 2017 until June 2020, Mr. Brune worked at Generation Nine, a company that he founded in the clothing industry.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

We are an "emerging growth company" and a "smaller reporting company" under applicable federal securities laws and therefore permitted to take advantage of certain reduced public company reporting requirements. As such, we provide in this Proxy Statement the scaled disclosure permitted under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act, including the compensation disclosures required of a "smaller reporting company," as that term is defined in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth all compensation awarded to, paid to or earned by the following named executive officers for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024:

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Stock Awards (\$) ⁽¹⁾	All Other ompensation (\$) ⁽²⁾	Total (\$)
David Villarreal,	2024	\$ 450,000	\$ 28,125	\$ 240,720	\$ 1,000	\$ 719,845
President and Chief Executive Officer ⁽³⁾	2023	\$ 275,000	\$ 71,025	\$ 1,131,000	\$ 1,250	\$ 1,478,275
Nicolai Brune,	2024	\$ 302,000	\$ 56,580	\$ 113,280	\$ 12,750	\$ 484,880
Chief Financial Officer(3)	2023	\$ 217,000	\$ 55,875	\$ 348,000	\$ 1,250	\$ 622,125

⁽¹⁾ For 2024, the amounts reported are based on the closing price of the Company's common stock at the time of grant. For 2023, the amounts reported are based on an assumed grant date value of \$34.80, which was the closing price of the Company's common stock on September 28, 2023, the day the Company's common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market. As of December 31, 2023, no shares had been issued pursuant to such restricted stock units. The shares underlying such restricted stock units were issued in the first quarter of 2024. These amounts do not reflect actual payments made to our named executive officers. There can be no assurance that the assumed grant date fair value will ever be realized by any named executive officer. For further information on assumptions made in the valuation of stock awards, see "Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" of the notes to our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 included elsewhere in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the years ended December 31, 2024 filed with the SEC on March 31, 2025.

- (2) For 2024 and 2023, all other compensation consisted of \$1,250 in cell phone reimbursements.
- (3) Mr. Villarreal was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer on February 3, 2023. Mr. Brune was appointed Chief Financial Officer on February 14, 2023.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

Employment Agreements

David Villarreal

On February 3, 2023, we entered into an executive employment agreement (as amended, the "Villarreal Employment Agreement") with David Villarreal to employ Mr. Villarreal as the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer for an initial term of two (2) years, which provides for an annual base salary of \$300,000, a discretionary bonus of up to 25% of his base salary upon achievement of objectives as may be determined by the Company's Board of Directors and severance in the event of a termination without cause in amount equal to one year's annual base salary and benefits. On February 2, 2024, the Company entered into an employment agreement amendment with

Mr. Villarreal to increase Mr. Villarreal's annual base salary to \$450,000, effective as of November 1, 2023. Pursuant to the terms of the employment agreement, subject to Board of Directors approval, we agreed to issue to Mr. Villarreal an RSU award under the Company's 2023 Plan, as and when adopted, for 32,500 shares of the Company's Common Stock. See "— RSUs — David Villarreal." Mr. Villarreal is subject to a one-year post-termination non-compete and non-solicit of employees and clients. He is also bound by confidentiality provisions. Mr. Villarreal's employment may be terminated by us in the event of death or disability; for cause (as defined in the Villarreal Employment Agreement) upon 10 day's written notice, or without cause upon 30 days' written notice. In the event of a termination for cause, Mr. Villarreal would be entitled to only his accrued salary and vacation time through the termination date. In the event of a termination for any reason other than for cause, Mr. Villarreal would be entitled to receive severance equal to one (1) year's salary and benefits, including, among other things, accelerated vesting of RSU's at the discretion of the Compensation Committee.

Nicolai Brune

On February 14, 2023, we entered into an executive employment agreement (as amended, the "Brune Employment Agreement") with Nicolai Brune to employ Mr. Brune as the Company's Chief Financial Officer for an initial term of two (2) years, which provides for an annual base salary of \$250,000, a discretionary bonus of up to 20% of his base salary upon achievement of objectives as may be determined by the Company's board of directors and severance in the event of a termination without cause on or after June 30, 2023 in amount equal to one year's annual base salary and benefits. On February 2, 2024, the Company entered into an employment agreement amendment with Mr. Brune to increase Mr. Brune's annual base salary to \$302,000, effective as of November 1, 2023. Pursuant to the terms of the employment agreement, subject to Board of Directors approval, we agreed to issue to Mr. Brune an RSU award under the Company's 2023 Plan, as and when adopted, for 10,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock. See "- RSUs - Nicolai Brune." Mr. Brune is subject to a one-year post-termination non-compete and non-solicit of employees and clients. He is also bound by confidentiality provisions. Mr. Brune's employment may be terminated by us in the event of death or disability; for cause (as defined in the Brune Employment Agreement) upon 10 day's written notice, or without cause upon 30 days' written notice. In the event of a termination for cause, Mr. Brune would be entitled to only his accrued salary and vacation time through the termination date. In the event of a termination for any reason other than for cause, Mr. Brune would be entitled to receive severance equal to one (1) year's salary and benefits.

Bonuses

David Villarreal. On September 15, 2023, the Compensation Committee approved the payment of a \$42,900 cash bonus to Mr. Villarreal for his service to the Company in connection with the Separation and Distribution. In addition, on February 2, 2024, the Compensation Committee awarded Mr. Villarreal a cash bonus equal to three weeks of his annual salary, or \$28,125, for his contribution to the Company during 2023, to be paid out at management's discretion. This bonus was paid in two installments: the first on December 10, 2023, and the second on June 4, 2024

Nicolai Brune. In June 2023, the Company paid Mr. Brune a discretionary cash bonus of \$15,000. On September 15, 2023, the Compensation Committee approved the payment of a \$22,000 cash bonus to Mr. Brune for his service to the Company in connection with the Separation and Distribution. In addition, on February 2, 2024, the Compensation Committee awarded Mr. Brune a cash bonus equal to three weeks of his annual salary, or \$18,875, for his contribution to the Company during 2023, to be paid out at management's discretion. This bonus was paid in two installments: the first on December 10, 2023, and the second on June 4, 2024 Equity Awards

Equity Awards

David Villarreal. On April 11, 2023, we granted an RSU under the 2023 Plan to David Villarreal for 650,000 shares of our Common Stock, vesting fifty percent (50%) upon issuance, with the balance vesting quarterly on a pro-rata basis over the next eighteen (18) months of continuous service ("Mr. Villarreal's Initial RSU Grant"). On February 2, 2024, the Compensation Committee accelerated the vesting of the balance of Mr. Villarreal's Initial RSU Grant.

On October 1, 2024, we granted RSUs under the 2023 Plan to David Villarreal representing 42,500 shares of our Common Stock, vesting twenty-five percent (25%) upon issuance, with the balance vesting in equal installments on each of December 31, 2024, March 30, 2025 and June 30, 2025.

Nicolai Brune. On April 11, 2023, we granted an RSU under the 2023 Plan to Nicolai Brune for 200,000 shares of our Common Stock, vesting fifty percent (50%) upon issuance, with the balance vesting quarterly on a pro-rata basis over the next eighteen (18) months of continuous service ("Mr. Brune's Initial RSU Grant"). On February 2, 2024, the Compensation Committee accelerated the vesting of the balance of Mr. Brune's Initial RSU Grant.

On October 1, 2024, we granted RSUs under the 2023 Plan to Nicolai Brune representing 10,000 shares of our Common Stock, vesting twenty-five percent (25%) upon issuance, with the balance vesting in equal installments on each of December 31, 2024, March 30, 2025 and June 30, 2025.

Retirement, Health, Welfare, and Additional Benefits

Our executive officers are eligible to participate in our employee benefit plans and programs, including medical benefits, flexible spending accounts, short and long-term disability and life insurance, to the same extent as our other full-time employees, subject to the terms and eligibility requirements of those plans. Our executive officers are also eligible to participate in a tax-qualified 401(k) defined contribution plan to the same extent as our other full-time employees. Currently, we do match contributions made by participants in the 401(k) plan or make other contributions to participant accounts.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth information regarding the outstanding option awards held by the named executive officers as of December 31, 2024:

	Stock	Awa	ards
Name	Number of shares or units of stock that have not vested (#)(1)		Market value of shares or units of stock that have not vested (\$)^{(2)}
David Villarreal	21,250	\$	56,737.50
Nicolai Brune	10,000	\$	26,700

Represents restricted stock units which vest fifty percent (50%) upon issuance, with the balance vesting quarterly on a
pro-rata basis over eighteen (18) months.

2023 Incentive Compensation Plan

The 2023 Plan was approved and adopted on February 28, 2023 by our Board of Directors as well as SG Holdings, our sole stockholder on such date. The principal provisions of the 2023 Plan are summarized below.

Administration

The 2023 Plan vests broad powers in a committee to administer and interpret the 2023 Plan. Our Board of Directors has initially designated the Compensation Committee to administer the 2023 Plan. Except when limited by the terms of the 2023 Plan, the Compensation Committee has the authority to, among other things: select the persons to be granted awards; determine the type, size and term of awards; establish performance objectives and conditions for earning awards; determine whether such performance objectives and conditions have been met; and accelerate the vesting or exercisability of an award. In its discretion, the Compensation Committee may delegate all or part of its authority and duties with respect to granting awards to one or more of our officers, subject to certain limitations and provided applicable law so permits.

Our Board of Directors may amend, alter or discontinue the 2023 Plan and the Compensation Committee may amend any outstanding award at any time; provided, however, that no such amendment or termination may adversely affect awards then outstanding without the holder's permission. In addition, any amendments seeking to increase the total number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2023 Plan or modifying the classes of participants eligible to receive

⁽²⁾ Calculated by multiplying the closing price per share of the Company's common stock on December 31, 2024, \$2.67 by the number of shares.

awards under the 2023 Plan will require ratification by our stockholders in accordance with applicable law. Additionally, as described more fully below, neither the Compensation Committee nor the Board of Directors is permitted to reprice outstanding options or stock appreciation rights without stockholder consent.

Eligibility

Any of our employees, directors, consultants, and other service providers, or those of our affiliates, are eligible to participate in the 2023 Plan and may be selected by the Compensation Committee to receive an award.

Vesting

The Compensation Committee determines the vesting conditions for awards. These conditions may include the continued employment or service of the participant, the attainment of specific individual or corporate performance goals, or other factors as determined in the Compensation Committee's discretion (collectively, "Vesting Conditions").

Shares of Stock Available for Issuance

Subject to certain adjustments, the initial maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the 2023 Plan in connection with awards was 200,000 shares (as adjusted to reflect the Reverse Stock Split). In addition, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the 2023 Plan will automatically increase on January 1 of each calendar year for a period of ten years commencing on January 1, 2024 and ending on (and including) January 1, 2033, in a number of shares of Common Stock equal to 4.5% of the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding calendar year, provided, however that the Board of Directors may act prior to January 1 of a given calendar year to provide that the increase for such year will be a lesser number of shares of Common Stock. On January 1, 2024, 459,000 shares of the Company's common stock were added to the 2023 Plan pursuant to this evergreen provision. On January 1, 2025, 66,784 shares of the Company's common stock were added to the 2023 Plan pursuant to the evergreen provision. All available shares may be utilized toward the grant of any type of award under the 2023 Plan. The 2023 Plan imposes a limitation on the total number of shares of Common Stock with respect to which awards may be granted to any non-employee director in his or her capacity as a non-employee director in any single calendar year of 50,000 shares (as adjusted to reflect the Reverse Stock Split). At the 2025 Annual Meeting, stockholders are being asked to vote to approve the 2023 Plan Amendment which would increase the number of shares authorized for issuance under the 2023 Plan by 1,200,000 shares of common stock. See "Proposal 5 Approval of the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal."

In the event of any merger, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, split up, spin-off, combination of shares, exchange of shares, stock dividend, dividend in kind, or other like change in capital structure (other than ordinary cash dividends), or other similar corporate event or transaction that affects our Common Stock, the Compensation Committee shall make adjustments to the number and kind of shares authorized by the 2023 Plan and covered under outstanding 2023 Plan awards as it determines appropriate and equitable. Shares subject to 2023 Plan awards that expire without being fully exercised or that are otherwise forfeited, cancelled or terminated may again be made available for issuance under the 2023 Plan. However, shares withheld in settlement of a tax withholding obligation, or in satisfaction of the exercise price payable upon exercise of an option, will not again become available for issuance under the 2023 Plan.

Types of Awards

The following types of awards may be granted to participants under the 2023 Plan: (i) incentive stock options, or ISOs; (ii) nonqualified stock options, or NQOs and together with ISOs, options; (iii) stock appreciation rights; (iv) restricted stock; or (v) restricted stock units.

Stock Options. An option entitles the holder to purchase from us a stated number of shares of Common Stock. An ISO may only be granted to an employee of ours or our eligible affiliates. The Compensation Committee will specify the number of shares of Common Stock subject to each option and the exercise price for such option, provided that the exercise price may not be less than the fair market value of a share of Common Stock on the date the option is granted. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if ISOs are granted to any 10% stockholder, the exercise price shall not be less than 110% of the fair market value of Common Stock on the date the option is granted.

Generally, options may be exercised in whole or in part through a cash payment. The Compensation Committee may, in its sole discretion, permit payment of the exercise price of an option in the form of previously acquired shares based on the fair market value of the shares on the date the option is exercised, through means of "net settlement," which involves the cancellation of a portion of the option to cover the cost of exercising the balance of the option or by such other means as it deems acceptable.

All options shall be or become exercisable in accordance with the terms of the applicable award agreement. The maximum term of an option shall be determined by the Compensation Committee on the date of grant but shall not exceed 10 years (5 years in the case of ISOs granted to any 10% stockholder). In the case of ISOs, the aggregate fair market value (determined as of the date of grant) of Common Stock with respect to which such ISOs become exercisable for the first time during any calendar year cannot exceed \$100,000. ISOs granted in excess of this limitation will be treated as non-qualified stock options.

Stock Appreciation Rights. A stock appreciation right represents the right to receive, upon exercise, any appreciation in a share of Common Stock over a particular time period. The base price of a stock appreciation right shall not be less than the fair market value of a share of Common Stock on the date the stock appreciation right is granted. This award is intended to mirror the benefit the participant would have received if the Compensation Committee had granted the participant an option. The maximum term of a stock appreciation right shall be determined by the Compensation Committee on the date of grant but shall not exceed 10 years. Distributions with respect to stock appreciation rights may be made in cash, shares of Common Stock, or a combination of both, at the Compensation Committee's discretion.

Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement or determined by the Compensation Committee, if a participant terminates employment with us (or our affiliates) due to death or disability, the participant's unexercised options and stock appreciation rights may be exercised, to the extent they were exercisable on the termination date, for a period of twelve months from the termination date or until the expiration of the original award term, whichever period is shorter. If the participant terminates employment with us (or our affiliates) for cause, (i) all unexercised options and stock appreciation rights (whether vested or unvested) shall terminate and be forfeited on the termination date, and (ii) any shares in respect of exercised options or stock appreciation rights for which we have not yet delivered share certificates will be forfeited and we will refund to the participant the option exercise price paid for those shares, if any. If the participant's employment terminates for any other reason, any vested but unexercised options and stock appreciation rights may be exercised by the participant, to the extent exercisable at the time of termination, for a period of ninety days from the termination date (or such time as specified by the Compensation Committee at or after grant) or until the expiration of the original option or stock appreciation right term, whichever period is shorter. Unless otherwise provided by the Compensation Committee, any options and stock appreciation rights that are not exercisable at the time of termination of employment shall terminate and be forfeited on the termination date.

Restricted Stock. A restricted stock award is a grant of shares of Common Stock, which are subject to forfeiture restrictions during a restriction period. The Compensation Committee will determine the price, if any, to be paid by the participant for each share of Common Stock subject to a restricted stock award. The restricted stock may be subject to Vesting Conditions. If the specified Vesting Conditions are not attained, the participant will forfeit the portion of the restricted stock award with respect to which those conditions are not attained, and the underlying Common Stock will be forfeited to us. At the end of the restriction period, if the Vesting Conditions have been satisfied, the restrictions imposed will lapse with respect to the applicable number of shares. Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement or determined by the Compensation Committee, upon termination a participant will forfeit all restricted stock that then remains subject to forfeiture restrictions.

Restricted Stock Units. Restricted stock units are granted in reference to a specified number of shares of Common Stock and entitle the holder to receive, on the achievement of applicable Vesting Conditions, shares of Common Stock. Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement or determined by the Compensation Committee, upon termination a participant will forfeit all restricted stock units that then remain subject to forfeiture.

Change in Control

In the event of a change in control, the Compensation Committee may, on a participant-by-participant basis: (i) cause any or all outstanding awards to become vested and immediately exercisable (as applicable), in whole or in part; (ii) cause any outstanding option or stock appreciation right to become fully vested and immediately exercisable for a reasonable period in advance of the change in control and, to the extent not exercised prior to that change in control, cancel that option or stock appreciation right upon closing of the change in control; (iii) cancel any unvested award

or unvested portion thereof, with or without consideration; (iv) cancel any award in exchange for a substitute award; (v) redeem any restricted stock or restricted stock unit for cash and/or other substitute consideration with value equal to the fair market value of an unrestricted share on the date of the change in control; (vi) cancel any outstanding option or stock appreciation right with respect to all Common Stock for which the award remains unexercised in exchange for a cash payment equal to the excess (if any) of the fair market value of the Common Stock subject to the option or stock appreciation right over the exercise price of the option or stock appreciation right; (vii) impose vesting terms on cash or substitute consideration payable upon cancellation of an award that are substantially similar to those that applied to the cancelled award immediately prior to the change in control, and/or earn-out, escrow, holdback or similar arrangements, to the extent such arrangements are applicable to any consideration paid to stockholders in connection with the change in control; (viii) take such other action as the Compensation Committee shall determine to be reasonable under the circumstances; and/or (ix) in the case of any award subject to Section 409A of the Code, the Compensation Committee shall only be permitted to use discretion to alter the settlement timing of the award to the extent that such discretion would be permitted under Section 409A of the Code.

Repricing

Neither our Board of Directors nor the Compensation Committee may, without obtaining prior approval of our stockholders: (i) implement any cancellation/re-grant program pursuant to which outstanding options or stock appreciation rights under the 2023 Plan are cancelled and new options or stock appreciation rights are granted in replacement with a lower exercise per share; (ii) cancel outstanding options or stock appreciation rights under the 2023 Plan with an exercise price per share in excess of the then current fair market value per share for consideration payable in our equity securities; or (iii) otherwise directly reduce the exercise price in effect for outstanding options or stock appreciation rights under the 2023 Plan.

Miscellaneous

Generally, awards granted under the 2023 Plan shall be nontransferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. No participant shall have any rights as a stockholder with respect to shares covered by options or restricted stock units, unless and until such awards are settled in shares of Common Stock. The Company's obligation to issue shares or to otherwise make payments in respect of 2023 Plan awards will be conditioned on the Company's ability to do so in compliance with all applicable laws and exchange listing requirements. The awards will be subject to our recoupment and stock ownership policies, as may be in effect from time to time. The 2023 Plan will expire 10 years after it became effective.

Clawback Policy

The Board has adopted a clawback policy which requires the clawback of erroneously awarded incentive-based compensation of past or current executive officers awarded during the three full fiscal years preceding the date on which the issuer is required to prepare an accounting restatement due to the material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the federal securities laws. There is no fault or misconduct required to trigger a clawback.

The Compensation Committee shall determine, in its sole discretion, the timing and method for promptly recouping such erroneously awarded compensation, which may include without limitation: (a) seeking reimbursement of all or part of any cash or equity-based award, (b) cancelling prior cash or equity-based awards, whether vested or unvested or paid or unpaid, (c) cancelling or offsetting against any planned future cash or equity-based awards, (d) forfeiture of deferred compensation, subject to compliance with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder, and (e) any other method authorized by applicable law or contract. Subject to compliance with any applicable law, the Compensation Committee may affect recovery under this policy from any amount otherwise payable to the executive officer, including amounts payable to such individual under any otherwise applicable Company plan or program, including base salary, bonuses or commissions and compensation previously deferred by the executive officer.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock as of the Record Date by: (i) each current director, (ii) each named executive officer, (iii) each person who we know to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our Common Stock, and (iv) all current directors and executive officers as a group. As of the Record Date, 3,264,625 shares of our Common Stock were outstanding. The persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our Common Stock shown as beneficially owned by them. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner listed in the table below is c/o Safe and Green Development Corporation, 100 Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 1201, Miami, Florida 33132.

Name of Beneficial Owner	Shares of Common Stock Beneficially Owned ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾	Percentage of Common Stock Beneficially Owned ⁽¹⁾
David Villarreal	64,456	*
Nicolai Brune	27,637	*
Bjarne Borg	135,412	4.15%
Anthony M. Cialone	117,869	3.61%
James D. Burnham	105,155	3.22%
John Scott Magrane	4,125	*
Jeffrey Tweedy	3,625	*
Peter DeMaria	4,125	*
Christopher Melton	5,625	*
All current executive officers and directors as a group (9 persons)	467,029	14.34%

5% Stockholders other than executive officers and directors

Represents beneficial ownership of less than one percent.

⁽¹⁾ The securities "beneficially owned" by a person are determined in accordance with the definition of "beneficial ownership" set forth in the regulations of the SEC and, accordingly, may include securities owned by or for, among others, the spouse, children or certain other relatives of such person as well as other securities as to which the person has or shares voting or investment power. The same shares may be beneficially owned by more than one person. Shares of Common Stock currently issuable or issuable within 60 days of the Record Date upon the vesting of restricted stock units are deemed to be outstanding in computing the beneficial ownership and percentage of beneficial ownership of the person holding such securities, but they are not deemed to be outstanding in computing the percentage of beneficial ownership of any other person. Beneficial ownership does not include restricted stock units which have not vested as of, and will not vest within 60 days of, the Record Date. Beneficial ownership may be disclaimed as to certain of the securities.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS, PROMOTERS AND CERTAIN CONTROL PERSONS

Related Party Transactions

Procedures for Approval of Related Person Transactions

The Company has a written related person transaction policy regarding the review and approval or ratification of related person transactions.

The related person transaction policy applies to any transaction in which SG DevCo is a participant, the amount involved exceeds the lesser of \$120,000 or 1% of the average of the Company's total assets as of the end of the last two completed fiscal years and a related party has or will have a direct or indirect material interest. A related party means any director or executive officer, any nominee for director, any stockholder known to SG DevCo to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of any class of the Company's voting securities, any immediate family member of any such persons, any entity in which any of such persons is employed or occupies a similar position, and any entity in which any of such persons has a direct or indirect ownership interest in such entity that, when aggregated with the ownership interests of all the persons identified above, amounts to a 10% or greater ownership interest.

It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to review related party transactions and approve, ratify, revise or reject such transactions. It is our policy to enter into or ratify related party transactions only when it is determined that the related party transaction in question is in, or is not inconsistent with, the best interests of SG DevCo and its stockholders. In determining whether to approve or ratify a related party transaction, the Audit Committee is able to consider, among other factors it deems appropriate, whether the proposed transaction would occur in the ordinary course of business; the purpose and benefits of the proposed transaction to SG DevCo; the terms and conditions of the proposed transaction; and the terms and conditions available to unrelated third parties in arms-length negotiations in respect of similar transactions. No director will be able to participate in the deliberations or vote regarding a transaction in which he or she, or a member of his or her immediate family, has a direct or indirect interest.

Our related person transaction policy provides that certain types of transactions are deemed to be pre-approved, including compensation of executive officers and directors approved by the Compensation Committee and transactions involving competitive bids or at rates fixed by governmental authority.

Related Party Transactions since January 1, 2023

On August 9, 2023, we and SG Holdings entered into a Note Cancellation Agreement, effective as of July 1, 2023, pursuant to which SG Holdings cancelled and forgave the remaining \$4,000,000 balance then due on that certain promissory note, dated December 19, 2021, made by us in favor of SG Holdings in the original principal amount of \$4,200,000.

As of December 31, 2024, \$1,720,844 was due from SG Holdings for advances made by the Company. As of December 31, 2023, the Company did not believe there was certainty in the collectability of the advances we have made to SG Holdings and therefore recorded a reserve against the \$1,720,844, which is included in additional paid-in capital. On January 29, 2025, we entered into a mutual release and discharge agreement (the "Mutual Release") with SG Holdings pursuant to us forgiving and releasing from its obligations to us under that certain promissory note, dated August 9, 2023, in the principal amount of \$908,322.95 and in respect of \$815,522 of inter-company advances from us to SG Holdings (which amounts had been written off of our balance sheet as of December 31, 2023) in exchange for SG Holdings forgiving \$394,329 of inter-company debt owed to SG Holdings by us and for SG Holdings transferring 276,425 shares (the "Shares") of our Common Stock owned by SG Holdings to us. The Company currently plans to hold the Shares in its treasury. As a result of this agreement, SG Holdings is no longer a stockholder of the Company.

The Separation from SG Holdings

In connection with the Separation and Distribution, we entered into a separation and distribution agreement and several other agreements with SG Holdings to effect the Separation and provide a framework for our relationship with SG Holdings and its subsidiaries after the Separation. These agreements provide for the allocation between us, on the one hand, and SG Holdings and its subsidiaries on the other hand, of the assets, liabilities and obligations associated

with the real estate development business, on the one hand, and SG Holdings other current businesses, on the other hand, and will govern the relationship between our company, on the one hand, and SG Holdings and its subsidiaries, on the other hand, subsequent to the Separation and Distribution (including with respect to transition services, employee matters and tax matters).

Separation and Distribution Agreement

The separation and distribution agreement governs the overall terms of the Separation and Distribution and specified those conditions that must be satisfied or waived by SG Holdings prior to the completion of the Separation. We and SG Holdings each agreed to indemnify the other and each of the other's current and former directors, officers, and employees, and each of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of any of them, against certain liabilities incurred in connection with the Separation and Distribution and our and SG Holdings' respective businesses. The amount of either SG Holdings or our indemnification obligations will be reduced by any net insurance proceeds the party being indemnified receives. The separation and distribution agreement also establishes procedures for handling claims subject to indemnification and related matters.

Tax Matters Agreement

In connection with the Separation, we and SG Holdings entered into a tax matters agreement that contains certain tax matters arrangements and governs the parties' respective rights, responsibilities, and obligations with respect to taxes, including taxes arising in the ordinary course of business and taxes incurred as a result of the Separation and the Distribution. The tax matters arrangement also sets forth the respective obligations of the parties with respect to the filing of tax returns, the administration of tax contests, and assistance and cooperation on tax matters.

The tax matters agreement governs the rights and obligations that we and SG Holdings have after the Separation with respect to taxes for both pre- and post-closing periods. Under the tax matters arrangement, we will be responsible for (i) any of our taxes for all periods prior to and after the Distribution and (ii) any taxes of the SG Holdings group for periods prior to the Distribution to the extent attributable to the real estate development business. SG Holdings generally will be responsible for any of the taxes of the SG Holdings group other than taxes for which we are responsible. In addition, SG Holdings will be responsible for its taxes arising as a result of the Separation and Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, sales, use, transfer, real property transfer, intangible, recordation, registration, documentary, stamp or similar taxes imposed on the Distribution shall be borne fifty percent (50%) by us and fifty percent (50%) by SG Holdings. We shall be entitled to any refund (and any interest thereon received from the applicable tax authority) of taxes for which we are responsible for under the tax matters agreement and SG Holdings shall be entitled to any refund (and any interest thereon received from the applicable tax authority) of taxes for which SG Holdings is responsible for under the tax matters agreement.

Each of SG Holdings and SG DevCo will indemnify each other against any taxes allocated to such party under the tax matters agreement and related out-of-pocket costs and expenses.

Shared Services Agreement

In connection with the Separation, we entered into a shared services agreement with SG Holdings which sets forth the terms on which SG Holdings provides to us certain services or functions that the companies historically have shared. Shared services will include various administrative, accounting, communications/investor relations, human resources, operations/construction services, and strategic management and other support services.

In consideration for such services, we pay fees to SG Holdings for the services provided, and those fees are generally in amounts intended to allow SG Holdings to recover all of its direct and indirect costs incurred in providing those services. SG Holdings charges us a fee for services performed by (i) its employees which is a percentage of each employee's base salary based upon an allocation of their business time spent providing such services and (ii) third parties, the fees charged by such third parties. We also pay SG Holdings for general and administrative expenses incurred by SG Holdings attributable to both the operation of SG Holdings (other than the provision of the services performed by SG Holdings' employees) and the provision of the shared services, including but not limited to information technology, data subscription and corporate overhead expenses, the portion of such costs and expenses that are attributable to the provision of the shared services, as reasonably determined by SG Holdings.

The personnel performing services under the shared services agreement are employees and/or independent contractors of SG Holdings and are not under our direction or control. As such, conflicts of interest may arise in connection with the performance of the services by SG Holdings personnel and the allocation of priority to the services requested by us. We also reimburse SG Holdings for direct out-of-pocket costs incurred by SG Holdings for third party services provided to us. During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the fees we paid under the shared services agreement amounted to \$0 and \$180,000, respectively. We terminated the shared services agreement in January 2025.

Other Related Party Transactions

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into separate indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers, in addition to the indemnification that is provided for in our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws. The indemnification agreements and our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws require us to indemnify our directors and executive officers to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law.

Fabrication Agreement

On December 2, 2022, we entered into the Fabrication Agreement with SG Echo for the fabrication of approximately 800 multifamily market rate rental units, equal to approximately 800,000 square feet of new modular buildings to be located at the McLean site (the Project). The Fabrication Agreement provides that SG Echo will be paid a fee equal to 15% of the cost of the Project. The Project will be fabricated in Phases of 100 to 150 units per phase, with the schedule of the phasing to be determined in our sole discretion. The terms of payment are as follows: (i) down payment of 30% upon release of project for fabrication; (ii) stage payment of 65% upon completion of fabrication, testing and inspection of each unit as it leaves the facility; and (iii) final payment of 5% upon completion of installation on site, including acceptance of punch list items, startup of equipment and City of Durant inspection. Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may withhold 10%, as retainage, from the payment otherwise due, to be reduced to 5% after field install is watertight and 2.5% after all punch list items have been complete. The Fabrication Agreement may be terminated for cause by either party upon 30days written notice to the other party, subject to each party's right to cure a default or breach, except for fraud or bad faith. In the event of termination, SG Echo will be entitled to be paid for all services rendered through the date of termination. In the event the termination by us is without cause, we will also pay any expenses incurred as a result of the termination (including without limitation supplier and vendor cancellation fees, restocking fees, subcontractor termination or cancellation fees, or other similar termination costs), plus a 15% markup as compensation for SG Echo's anticipated profit on the value of services not performed by SG Echo. In connection with the entry into the Master Purchase Agreement, on December 18, 2023, the Company and SG Echo terminated that certain Fabrication Agreement, dated December 2, 2022, between the parties relating to the McLean mixed-use site. During the year ended December 31, 2023, we did not pay any fees under the Fabrication Agreement.

Master Purchase Agreement

On December 17, 2023, we entered into a Master Purchase Agreement with SG Echo pursuant to which we may engage SG Echo from time to time to provide modular construction design, engineering, fabrication, delivery and other services (collectively, the "Work") on such terms as the parties may mutually agree. The Master Purchase Agreement provides that if we should desire that SG Echo provide services in connection with any location, we will request from SG Echo a written proposal and that within 15 business days SG Echo will provide us with an itemized cost proposal for the services to be performed and a firm schedule for performing the services based upon the information contained in the request. If the proposal and schedule is satisfactory to us, the Master Purchase Agreement provides that the substance of such proposal will then be incorporated into a project order, including specific information regarding the project, the project site and services to be performed, to be executed by both parties.

The Master Purchase Agreement provides that SG Echo will be paid a fee equal to 12% of the agreed cost of each project. The Master Purchase Agreement further provides that payment terms for all design work and the completion of the pre-fabricated container and module shall be made in accordance with the following schedule: (a) a deposit equal to 40% of the cost of the pre-fabricated container and module only shall be paid by us to SG Echo within 5 business days of the mutual execution of a project order; (b) a progress payment (not to exceed to 35% of the cost of the pre-fabricated container and module) shall be paid by us to SG Echo monthly in proportion to the percentage of

Work completed, which payment shall be made within 10 business days of the Company receipt of SG Echo's invoice; (c) a progress payment equal to 15% of the cost of the pre-fabricated container and module shall be paid by us to SG Echo within 10 business days of the delivery of the pre-fabricated container and module to the specific project site; and (d) the final payment equal to 10% of the cost of the pre-fabricated container and module only shall be paid by us to SG Echo within 10 business days of the substantial completion of the Work. Substantial completion of the Work shall be as defined by the applicable project order. Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may withhold 10% of the invoiced amount, as retainage, which will be paid to SG Echo once the specific project is completed (including any punch list items). The Master Purchase Agreement may be terminated by either party if there is a material default by the other party and such default continues for a period of 20 days after receipt by the defaulting party of written notice thereof. If we terminate the Master Purchase Agreement or any project order as a result of a default by SG Echo, SG Echo will not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished. If the unpaid balance of the amount set forth in the project order for the project is less than the cost of finishing the Work, SG Echo will pay the difference to us. In no event will SG Echo be entitled to receive any compensation if the cost to us of performing the balance of the Work is less than the unpaid balance. In addition, we may terminate the Master Purchase Agreement or any project order without cause. In the event the termination by us is without cause, SG Echo will be entitled to payment for all work and costs incurred prior to termination date plus the applicable fee owed to SG Echo thereon as more particularly described in the applicable project order.

The initial project for which modular construction services are anticipated to be provided to us by SG Echo is our Magnolia Gardens residential project to be built on our McLean mixed-use site in Durant, Oklahoma, consisting of 800 residential units. In accordance with the Master Purchase Agreement, SG Echo will provide us with an itemized cost proposal for the services to be performed for the Magnolia Gardens residential project and a firm schedule for performing the services. If the proposal and schedule is satisfactory to the Company, the proposal will be then incorporated into a project order to be executed by both parties.

Employment Relationships

During 2023, Derek Villarreal, son of David Villarreal, our Chief Executive Officer, was employed by the Company as a Senior Project Manager at an annual salary of \$140,000 for 2023, 2024 and 2025. In addition, Marc Brune, father of Nicolai Brune, our Chief Financial Officer, provides consulting services to the Company for which he (i) received 100,000 restricted stock units in each of April 2023 and March 2024, (ii) was paid a consulting fee of \$10,000 a month from January 2024 through May 2025; and (iii) will receive a consulting fee of \$15,000 a month from June 2025 through December 2025. The Audit Committee has approved both transactions in accordance with the related person transaction policy.

Resource Group Transaction

In connection with the closing of the acquisition of Resource Group pursuant to the Resource MIPA, as amended: (i) we issued 121,992 shares of our Common Stock, 485,616 shares of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and an unsecured 6% promissory note due June 2026 in the principal amount of \$155,397.01 to Index Equity US LLC ("IEU"), a limited liability company managed by Mr. Borg, in exchange for IEU's membership interests in Resource Group; (ii) we issued 38 shares of our Common Stock,150 shares of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and an unsecured 6% promissory note due June 2026 in the principal amount of \$48.00 to Index Resource Equity LLC ("IRE"), a limited liability company managed by Index Management Services LLC, which in turn is managed by Mr. Borg, in exchange for IRE's membership interests in Resource Group; (iii) we issued 94,794 shares of our Common Stock, 377,225 shares of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and an unsecured 6% promissory note due June 2026 in the principal amount of \$120,712.02 to Mr. Burnham in exchange for his membership interests in Resource Group; and (iv) we issued 106,221 shares of our Common Stock, 422,835 shares of our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and an unsecured 6% promissory note due June 2026 in the principal amount of \$135,307.16 to Mr. Cialone in exchange for his membership interests in Resource Group.

In addition, in connection with the closing we also agreed to indemnify Messrs. Borg, Burnham and Cialone in respect of various certain obligations and trade debts of Resource Group personally guaranteed by them and Resource Group US LLC, issued an 11.5% note in the principal amount of \$1,255,000 to Mr. Burnham in consideration of funds previously advanced to Resource Group US LLC. The note is due upon the earlier of April 30, 2026, immediately upon a change of control, or after the occurrence of an event of default.

On June 2, 2025, Resource Group US entered into an amended and restated consulting agreement (the "Cialone Consulting Agreement") with AMC Environmental Consulting LLC, a company controlled by Mr. Cialone ("AMC"), and Mr. Cialone. Pursuant to the Cialone Consulting Agreement, AMC will receive a consulting fee of \$25,000 a month and a \$1,250 monthly car reimbursement, will be eligible to receive bonuses or incentive equity awards from Resource Group US, at its sole discretion, and will be responsible for developing and implementing Resource Group US's strategic plan, leading and managing the organization, and managing stakeholder relationships. The term of Cialone Consulting Agreement continues from and after its June 2, 2025 effective date until terminated by either party for cause or without cause, or by reason of Mr. Cialone's death or disability. If the Cialone Consulting Agreement is terminated by the Company without cause or by AMC for cause the Company will pay AMC a termination fee equal to \$600,000, payable in monthly installments of \$25,000 after AMC has executed and delivered a general release of claims to the Company, and if Mr. Cialone timely elects COBRA continuation of coverage under the Company's group medical, dental and vision plans, the Company will reimburse Mr. Cialone for the cost of COBRA insurance premiums for 24 months, less all applicable taxes and deductions. Pursuant to the Cialone Consulting Agreement, AMC is subject to a 24-month post-termination non-compete and non-solicit of employees and clients. AMC is also bound by confidentiality provisions.

On June 2, 2025, Resource Group US also entered into an amended and restated consulting agreement (the "Burnham Consulting Agreement") with JDB Consulting Services, Inc., a company controlled by Mr. Burnham ("JDB"), and Mr. Burnham. Pursuant to the Burnham Consulting Agreement, JDB will receive a consulting fee of \$25,000 a month and a \$1,250 monthly car reimbursement, will be eligible to receive bonuses or incentive equity awards from Resource Group US, at its sole discretion, and will be responsible for overseeing financial matters, including planning and analysis, collaborating with team members to develop and execute overall business strategy, driving revenue growth and identifying new business opportunities. The term of Burnham Consulting Agreement continues from and after its June 2, 2025 effective date until terminated by either party for cause or without cause, or by reason of Mr. Burnham's death or disability. If the Burnham Consulting Agreement is terminated by the Company without cause or by JDB for cause the Company will pay JDB a termination fee equal to \$600,000, plus \$72,000 for health insurance reimbursement, payable in monthly installments of \$28,000 after JDB has executed and delivered a general release of claims to the Company. Pursuant to the Burnham Consulting Agreement, JDB is subject to a 24-month post-termination non-compete and non-solicit of employees and clients. JDB is also bound by confidentiality provisions.

ANNUAL REPORT/FORM 10-K

SG DevCo's 2024 Annual Report is being delivered to and made available to stockholders concurrently with this Proxy Statement at http://www.astproxyportal.com/ast/29297/. Copies of the 2024 Annual Report and any amendments thereto, as filed with the SEC, may be obtained without charge by writing to Safe and Green Development Corporation, 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201, Miami, Florida 33132, Attention: Corporate Secretary. A complimentary copy may also be obtained at the internet website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov, and by visiting our internet website at www.sec.gov, and by visiting our internet website at www.sec.gov, and by visiting our internet website at www.sec.gov, and by visiting our internet website at www.sec.gov, and by visiting our internet website at www.sec.gov, and by visiting our internet website at www.sec.gov, and by visiting our internet website at www.sec.gov, and by visiting our internet website at www.sec.gov, and by visiting our internet website at www.sec.gov.

HOUSEHOLDING

In accordance with notices previously sent to many stockholders who hold their shares through a broker, bank or other holder of record ("street-name stockholders") and share a single address, only one annual report and proxy statement is being delivered to that address unless contrary instructions from any stockholder at that address were received. This practice, known as "householding," is intended to reduce our printing and postage costs. However, any such street-name stockholder residing at the same address who wishes to receive a separate copy of this proxy statement or the accompanying annual report on Form 10-K may request a copy by contacting the broker, bank or other holder of record. Alternatively, we will promptly deliver a separate copy of either of such documents if a street-name stockholder contacts us either by calling (904) 496-0027 or by writing to Safe and Green Development Corporation, Attention: Corporate Secretary, 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201, Miami, Florida 33132.

Street-name stockholders who are currently receiving householded materials may revoke their consent, and street-name stockholders who are not currently receiving householded materials may request householding of our future materials, by contacting Broadridge Financial Services, Inc., either by calling toll free at (866) 540-7095 or by writing to Broadridge, Householding Department, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, New York 11717. If you revoke your consent, you will be removed from the "householding" program within 30 days of Broadridge's receipt of your revocation, and each stockholder at your address will receive individual copies of our future materials.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR THE 2026 ANNUAL MEETING

Stockholders who intend to present proposals for inclusion in next year's proxy materials for the 2026 Annual Meeting under SEC Rule 14a-8 must submit such proposals in writing by May 11, 2026 to Safe and Green Development Corporation, 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201, Miami, Florida 33132, Attention: Corporate Secretary. Such proposals must meet the requirements of our Amended and Restated Bylaws and the SEC to be eligible for inclusion in the proxy materials for our 2026 Annual Meeting.

Generally, timely notice of any director nomination or other proposal that any stockholder intends to present at the 2026 Annual Meeting but does not intend to have included in the proxy materials prepared by the Company in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting, must have been delivered in writing to the Corporate Secretary at the address above not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days before the first anniversary of the 2026 Annual Meeting. As a result, stockholders who intend to present proposals or director nominations directly at the 2026 Annual Meeting must give written notice to the Corporate Secretary no earlier than the close of business June 1, 2026, and no later than the close of business on July 1, 2026. Such stockholder notice must contain the information required by our Amended and Restated Bylaws (including the information required by Rule 14a-19, if applicable) and comply with the other procedures and requirements set forth in our Amended and Restated Bylaws and will not be effective otherwise. All notices should be addressed to the Corporate Secretary, Safe and Green Development Corporation, 100 Biscayne Blvd., Suite 1201, Miami, Florida 33132.

OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this Proxy Statement, the Board of Directors of SG DevCo knows of no other matters to be presented for stockholder action at the 2025 Annual Meeting. However, if any other matter is properly brought before the 2025 Annual Meeting for action by the stockholders, the persons named in the accompanying proxy card will vote in accordance with their best judgment.

By order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ David Villarreal
David Villarreal
Chief Executive Officer

Miami, Florida September 8, 2025

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(Pursuant to Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware)

Safe and Green Development Corporation (the "Corporation"), a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "General Corporation Law").

1. The Board of Directors of the Corporation has duly adopted a resolution pursuant to Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware setting forth a proposed amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended (the "Restated Certificate"), and declaring said amendment to be advisable. The requisite stockholders of the Corporation have duly approved said proposed amendment in accordance with Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. The amendment amends the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation as follows:

Article IV, Section (A) of the Restated Certificate is hereby amended to add the following paragraph immediately after the first paragraph of Article IV, Section (A):

"Upon this Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation becoming effective pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "Effective Time"), the shares of the Corporation's Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time and the shares of Common Stock issued and held in the treasury of the Corporation immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be reclassified as and combined into a smaller number of shares such that every [•]¹ shares of issued and outstanding Common Stock immediately prior to the Effective Time are automatically combined into one (1) validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable share of Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Reverse Stock Split"). Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentence, no fractional shares shall be issued and, in lieu thereof, any person who would otherwise be entitled to a fractional share of Common Stock as a result of the reclassification and combination following the Effective Time (after taking into account all fractional shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable to such holder) shall be entitled to receive a cash payment equal to the number of shares of the Common Stock held by such stockholder before the Reverse Stock Split that would otherwise have been exchanged for such fractional share interest multiplied by the average closing sales price of the Common Stock as reported on the Nasdaq Capital Market for the ten (10) days preceding the Effective Time.

Each stock certificate or book-entry position that, immediately prior to the Effective Time, represented shares of Common Stock that were issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall, from and after the Effective Time, automatically and without the necessity of presenting the same for exchange, represent that number of whole shares of Common Stock after the Effective Time into which the shares of Common Stock formerly represented by such certificate or book-entry position shall have been reclassified and combined (as well as the right to receive cash in lieu of fractional shares of Common Stock after the Effective Time)."

1 in	ne).
	2. This Certificate of Amendment shall be effective at Eastern Time on, 2025
1	The Board of Directors will have the discretion to effect the Reverse Stock Split at a ratio of any whole number between not less than 1-for-5 and not greater than 1-for-7.
	Approx A 1

and Restated Certificate of Incorporation 2025.	to be signed by its Chief Executive Officer this day of _	
	SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION	
	Ву:	
	Name: David Villarreal	
	Title: Chief Executive Officer	

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Safe and Green Development Corporation, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (the "*Corporation*"), does hereby certify:

- 1. The Board of Directors of the Corporation has duly adopted a resolution pursuant to Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware setting forth a proposed amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended (the "*Restated Certificate*") and declaring said amendment to be advisable. The requisite stockholders of the Corporation have duly approved said proposed amendment in accordance with Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. The amendment amends the Restated Certificate of the Corporation as follows:
 - 2. Article IV A. is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
- **A.** This Corporation is authorized to issue two classes of stock to be designated, respectively, "*Common Stock*" and "*Preferred Stock*." The total number of shares which the Corporation is authorized to issue is Five Hundred-Five Million (505,000,000) shares. Five Hundred Million (500,000,000) shares shall be Common Stock, each having a par value of \$0.001; and Five Million (5,000,000) shares shall be Preferred Stock, each having a par value of \$0.001.
 - 3. This Certificate of Amendment shall be effective at 12:01 a.m. Eastern Time on September [•], 2025.

Annex B-1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificate to be signed by the undersigned duly authorized officer, this day of $[\cdot]$, 2025.

SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

By:

Name: David Villarreal

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Annex B-2

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 2023 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

This amendment (the "Amendment") to the Safe and Green Development Corporation 2023 Incentive Compensation Plan (the "Plan"), is hereby adopted this [•] of September, 2025, by Safe and Green Development Corporation (the "Company"). All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Plan.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company adopted the Plan for the purposes set forth therein; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 17.2 of the Plan, the Board of Directors has the right to amend the Plan with respect to certain matters, provided that any material increase in the number of Shares available under the Plan shall be subject to stockholder approval; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has approved and authorized this Amendment to the Plan and has recommended that the stockholders of the Company approve this Amendment;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Plan is hereby amended, subject to and effective as of the date of stockholder approval hereof, in the following particulars:

1. Section 4.1(a) of the Plan is hereby amended by increasing the share references in such section from 289,859 shares to 1,489,859, so that Section 4.1(a) reads in its entirety as follows:

"Subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 4.3 hereof, the maximum aggregate number of shares of Common Stock which may be issued under all Awards granted to Participants under the Plan shall be 1,489,859 shares (the "Limit"), all of which may, but need not, be issued in respect of Incentive Stock Options. In addition, such Limit will automatically increase on January 1 of each calendar year for a period of eight years commencing on January 1, 2026 and ending on (and including) January 1, 2033, in a number of shares of Common Stock equal to 4.5% of the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding calendar year; provided, however that the Board may act prior to January 1 of a given calendar year to provide that the increase for such year will be a lesser number of shares of Common Stock."

2. Except as specifically set forth herein, the terms of the Plan shall be and remain unchanged, and the Plan as amended shall remain in full force and effect

The foregoing is hereby acknowledged as being the Amendment to the Safe and Green Development Corp. 2023 Incentive Compensation Plan, as adopted by the Board of Directors on September [•], 2025, and approved by the Company's stockholders on September [•], 2025.

SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Ву:
· ·
Annex C-1

ADMISSION TICKET

SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
September 29, 2025
10:00 a.m. Eastern Time
1271 Avenue of the Americas, 16th Floor
New York, New York 10020
If you attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders,
please bring this Admission Ticket as well
as a form of government issued photo identification.

SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

2025 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 10:00 A.M. EASTERN TIME
THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned stockholder(s) hereby appoint(s) David Villarreal and Nicolai Brune, or either of them, as proxies, each with the full power to appoint his substitute, and hereby authorizes them to represent and to vote, as designated on the reverse side of this proxy, all of the shares of common stock of SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION that the undersigned is/are entitled to vote, and with all powers that the undersigned would have if present at the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 10:00 A.M., Eastern Time, on September 29, 2025, at the offices of Blank Rome LLP, 1271 Avenue of the Americas, 16th Floor, New York, New York 10020, and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

This proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner directed on the reverse side. If no such direction is made, this proxy will be voted in accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendations.

(Continued and to be signed on the reverse side)

■ 1.1

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS OF

SAFE AND GREEN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

September 29, 2025

PROXY VOTING INSTRUCTIONS

INTERNET - Access www.voteproxy.com and follow the on-screen instructions or scan the QR code with your smartphone. Have your proxy card available when you access the web page.

TELEPHONE - Call toll-free **1-800-PROXIES** (1-800-776-9437) in the United States or **1-201-299-4446** from foreign countries from any touch-tone telephone and follow the instructions. Have your proxy card available when you call.

Vote online/phone until 11:59 PM EST on September 21, 2025.

MAIL - Sign, date and mail your proxy card in the envelope provided as soon as possible.

ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE PROXY MATERIALS - If you would like to reduce the costs incurred by our Company in mailing proxy materials, you can consent to receiving all future proxy statements, proxy cards and annual reports electronically via e-mail or the Internet. To sign up for electronic delivery, please follow the instructions above to vote using the Internet and, when prompted, indicate that you agree to receive or access proxy materials electronically in future years.



COMPANY NUMBER	
ACCOUNT NUMBER	

NOTICE OF INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIAL:

The Notice of Meeting, proxy statement and proxy card are available at http://www.astproxyportal.com/ast/29297

♥ Please detach along perforated line and mail in the envelope provided IF you are not voting via telephone or the Internet. ♥

20333003030303000100 0

092225

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS YOU VOTE "FOR" ALL THE NOMINEES LISTED AND "FOR" PROPOSALS 2-7. PLEASE SIGN, DATE AND RETURN PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. PLEASE MARK YOUR VOTE IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS SHOWN HERE X				
Election of Directors: The election of the following individuals nominated to serve as Class I directors, for a three-year term ending at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 2027. NOMINEES: Anthony M. Cialone John Scott Magrane, Jr David Villarreal	To ratify the appointment of of M&K CPAS PLLC as our independent registered public accounting firm for the Company's fiscal year ending December 31, 2025. To approve an amendment to the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of incorporation, as amended, to, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, effect a reverse stock split with respect to the Company's issued and outstanding common stock at a ratio of 1-for-5 to 1-for-20, with the ratio within such range to be determined at the discretion of the Board and included in a public announcement, subject to the authority of the Board of Directors to abandon such amendment (the "Reverse Stock Split Proposal").			
FOR ALL EXCEPT (See instructions below)	4. To approve an amendment to the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, to, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, increase the number of authorized shares of common stock from 100,000,000 to 500,000,000 subject to the authority of the Board of Directors to abandon such amendment (the "Authorized Increase Proposal").			
	To approve an amendment to the Company's 2023 Incentive Compensation Plan to increase the number of shares of common stock that will be available for awards under the 2023 Incentive Compensation Plan by 1,200,000 shares to 1,489,859 shares (the "2023 Plan Amendment Proposal").			
INSTRUCTIONS: To withhold authority to vote for any individual nominee(s), mark "FOR ALL EXCEPT" and fill in the circle next to each nominee you wish to withhold, as shown here:	To approve, for purposes of complying with Nasdaq listing rules, of the issuance of an aggregate of 9,041,182 shares of common stock to the prior members of Resource Group US Holdings LLC (the "Resource Group Proposal").			
	7 To approve, an adjournment of the 2025 Annual Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary to permit further solicitation and vote of proxies in the event there are not sufficient votes in favor of the Reverse Stock Split Proposal, the Authorized Increase Proposal, the 2023 Plan Amendment Proposal and/or the Resource Group Proposal.			
	NOTE: In their discretion, the proxies are authorized to vote upon such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments or postponements of the 2025 Annual Meeting.			
To change the address on your account, please check the box at right and indicate your new address in the address space above. Please note that changes to the registered name(s) on the account may not be submitted via this method.	MARK "X" HERE IF YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING.			
Signature of Stockholder Date:	Signature of Stockholder Date:			
Note: Please sign exactly as your name or names appear on this Proxy. When shares are held joint title as such. If the signer is a corporation, please sign full corporate name by duly authorized to the corporation of the c	ly, each holder should sign. When signing as executor, administrator, attorney, trustee or guardian, please give full officer, giving full title as such. If signer is a partnership, please sign in partnership name by authorized person.			